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Y92 Masn mnnbn 1.1.1

DY SN NHWNRHD NN NOPNNT MIAPYL ,INRIY NPTH NN ONHPN NI0N 1IN 9PN 2023 1DVPINA 7 PINNI
SV PYN IN TMINT NN ,002IW N9 ,aNT) DINIDMD DD ND¥IN NNNDNN (7DNNI1NY) #5392 MDY NHPNIN
DMYY M ,PYNa 1PYI55N0 MPYII NOVNND ,D°ANT) DININI TPNIN MDY Sy MNY MY NHLN ,DXPOY
MNI2 MDY HYA NMINNPN INN MDN DY MNIWNI oY 0% MYavN D O Dpwn 9ywa mnNdd ,NoNaa
,S&P 110 172N s DY DOV NINN HRIYY NN DY INIURND NPT THIINN NTNNT ,J191 MINTIN XY 112700
SN NTN DY ONIWND 1T 2 Fitch-1 Moody’s YNIWRN 17T M1aN 2023 92I09IX WTIN ToNN WNHN GoN
ORIV NDMINN IMANNI MDIYIN MPOYAN NN VDY NN U NPT NTNNY NN XYM

YDVPAND MIPNVN PN WY HPYN WYL MYYINNN NON 03057 MNYTN NYOIX TND TIND Y INI
N0 NN NHNDN NTI NN 1) NNNDNT D INKIN TN NI NN XYM WX (DNIY? P12y DDNONM)
NPTO NN 19 A2-H5 A1-10 HRIY DTN KW OINIYRN NPT NTIN DY Moody’s Ny 1in IXIN29 wTiNa .ONIW Yy
NIDN DT NNPYIN DIXIDMD DOWIR HY STDITH MNINY INN DIN TY IR OVWTNIND THNNa .1OYOY minn
.0ONYN MDINYA

NXAPN MY DY PMNN NYAYN MY YR 1919 MONNN ,INNINRN MYAYN 09097 NMINTN NN TIND
PADIN NN

995 NINYN PPOY MK DY NPHY : NPIPY MIVN YIZYA IRV NN NNAPN NTPHNN ,NNNINN X1N
PNV DY TPHRY ; GNYN TP NPNIN MYNY P19 ,1PMINIPY NDN 5555 NPTO PN NPOION NNV NN
OMANN MNAVWNDY DXYMNY YPD NP NN ; NNNINN MDA DIPMNAYNI DITIYN ¥3I¥2 IPVI T
229Y0N 2N IYNY DIRIPNY YPD) NN DT

YN NYIDY HY NN NNPNY TPPIN IR NNDN N0 9PO0¥2 ,0% NIT TYIND D) INVINN NPNYNN NIYOYN
1722 OMINNNM DMIVN MPPN DY ITI T HYaN ,MITYI OMZNN DXVNN HYIN) 129NN 22 NP
NPNN NIPIDY NN MDA NPXY APY .NNINHN NITI9HN MMAVN NYIDY 7NN YNHNITH 1I9INI NN IWNR (DN
OOVIPY22 N NPV 19 1N YN YL VR DMININ DY NIPINN 29PN DT NN NAND) 017 T2 DRI
10N 2,007 NNON ANNY WP MADN NIMYY NNND ,NITVINT NN JTIIRD GON .0MZHN NINLVPA
,IDPN NX MDY NHIY DIYINT DI 1IN DMADIN MNITN NN TYIND 1123 .NYNRT TP YTV 28990 10U NNy
DT 1D) DN MY DITAIVNN PON MITYN APY DXNMIND DITIW 190HND NHRNIND NNONNA DOV DN TWND
AYTHNN NOYW NJAPY NXIAPN NI ,INNNN PITY NNNNY NNNDNHN NNDY 12D .DONIDND MPYY DXONNN
.17792 DMPIWAL 1D2WNN YIND NNIAPN NN YN 1Y 53192 NN NHNDN DY 3NYITN DN NNNND ONNNI
oY NMNING NINNY NYY NI2NN ODIN ,OYMNN DY MNPNNN APY YOI NPPION) MIONX MIND O2IN 71N MINY
NIND DN 9IN NN NAMD 1IN
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(Tunn) Y192 masn mmndn 1.1.1

N5 NIAXNA NP NXAPN DY DIXIZID MWIN HY D), INIY DMINDN DI NINI DITIVN DY NYNNN NN 90102
NPNIN Y9 DY DN DMNIN DNV DTN DY NIIDY DWW NP APY ,NYYT NPRY NNPNY NP DY DTNN
Y9 NHYI TIY .INRIYI DIPIDM ANITON TN NXONN TIVNA,NPIONT MINIYIYI NPT NN, NV TP
9915 DMWY DXYININD NN NMMNNINNN INN NIAPIY NNIAPN 22YNN 20N NIND OPRIPN D) INDIN NPIONI
NIN MPIT NN DY) MIMIN NYIDID DPNYN MNPN NN TNNY

DY DMI5DN2 2023 MWD V39N PNYIIN TONNI NXIAPN NIVPNN NPIDI0PN NYDINH MIXN MY IWIND NTVN2
NAPN N7Y )Y 200 HYW 5915 DIFD NAVIYI MDIYN 7K MNVI IXIYR TNDN NTHYND DPRPIA MTOM
.MV HY

NIYIV 21D°0 DINNA VIO ,NNONND DINDYN DMWY DIYININT NN MMNNININ INK NIPYY NIOWNN NNIIAPN
V%), NPPODNON TN MNRNN,NIN NP2 NN ,0D) YIMIN NYIITD DPNON MNPN NIPN : MY ,NPIONN
PV MNPV MDN NIV 1D MNP0 NMHYN

L7295 .MOVNNM ,1PMYAYN N9 ,NNNINN MNNANNY WP MNTI IDIN OMP 09057 MMTN NN TIND
INAY NNIAPN DY THIPOYN MDY DY NNNONN DY DTNV NNYIVN 9PN X 1T 29V TIVNY 1N KD
IRIWD NIND NN HOPOY DY MYIWN 1YW XD ,009057 MNYTN NN TIIND

NPNIMIN NP0 NNbN  1.1.2

193 TN, 299070 MTI YT DY MDY DY IDVINY NPYITON NPNPIDN MY ,NOWN) NINIPIND 7O Pa NdNon
,IPN2NN NN INRND NXAPN DY NPPOYN MNSIND DY THIPMNN NYIYN 0N PR D0»I0IN MMTN DIDID TIND
N2 MAXONN NI NIV . NN DI NI NN INNYY POYI 19NN DI MPOYY NTND YT DO 12NN
MY PPN NMAY NNYIX NXIAPN NINNN DAY 2022 TONNA NMPN INKRD NNT .NOPN DINNI MPOYN MIYIN
MDD NYMINN ,NPNRIPIND PN NOPN PIVA DIPNYNN PYN YV INT TIPAN X IN NINONY MAPYA NOPN
NN ,NPNIPIN O¥NIYN DINIIND 190N PPN MDY , MDD AWNNNA PN J9IND NNIAPN DY NdPOYN
NYYNLIN MOOWNY NNVN NPNY NDOWNN NNIAPN 2022 MV NPINN NPIND NN DY 2023 Mva NONN
0% MIMIN ,NMNND M PNNA MDY IRYN P2 91990 MDIDYY NPRIPIND 71PDY P2 NDONIN PR JY NPIVAND
SINY) DYYWININ 9901 NOM ;NN MXT) X NNT 099151 OXNNAND DOYIPNI I2YTI D NTIYN NIND .IINY
GOV 2APYN NYNIN NPT .MADN NPDHY NPDIVA NPYIYD MOV 72IN0 DYDY TUR DPIWAN DD
ND DOYYPNN YW D92 NYIWNN 029057 MINTN NN TIND TV .0OPNY MDD ,NIPRIPINT DIWDRD INN
NNIAPN DY NNDIDNM PN DWW 1IN TYWNI DIWPND DY NN MIXTIN ON NIND ,NNT OY TN 7PN NN

DPPOYN MMININ DY DWW PNRN DY OITNYN NYOWNN DX TIVNID
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DRNNA 19 1PN 0»905 MMT .("TFRS”) 0»mN9»2 %905 MPT MNPNY DOXNNZ 127 DXTMNDA 0907 MMTH
.2010-y"wNN ,(D»MY D90 MNYT) TIY M) NIPNY

7MN ©Yva 2.2

: DONAN OYVIAN VYN MHNVDIIN MOYN DDA HY 15 D> TNINND O»IDIN MNYTH
DM DU DIPYIN e

O YINND MNMY IN MDY P20 TN T ININ

mvIan

DYT2IYY MIALVN I NMPNNN DIO)

DNT) OYON NMAMNNM Y0

MAMVN MRPOY MNYD MIIN MYPYN

7919 DPINMNN DXAVIV DINY DIDI)

OMNNN TPRNIYND NPITRN MIPOY 1272 ,1919 3 IR INT YN DXV DY NTTHN 19IN 1272 Y1ND

INNN Y20 MIPYoN yaon 2.3

PO SNYY NPY 2PN AN YDIN YTIIN .NIINN DY MDY YI0N 1PNV ,N7YA DNXIN DXTMIRNDN DMIDIN MMTH
.INIAPN NYH NAY MAPIYN NYDHYON N2¥20N NN INMNIY YIVNN N NY -1 2PN

NYT 7PV 01N VINIVN 2.4

DOWOIYN TYN MNIN DTN, MWD ,NYT 9P wa vwpnwnd nomnn N1, IFRS -5 oxnna 099050 ninyTn noya
ONY NPVIAZIN MNINM DITIIND .NIRNIT MDIIN ,NPIPNNN ,DPDI) KW DINIDN IY) THRNAYNN NPITHN DI DY
MDA DXPAD NYNIND NYTY WYX D NY DIWNPN P20 NPPN MDY DMINN DMINY D1971) DY 12¥1 1P DY DXODIN
DPDI DDIDIAIY MNIND DTOVIRD |1 10D, IVAPIV DIITNINDD NI NPND MDY SYNHT MNINAY TNV .M PN

001N NYapay [FRS 0w»a nHninn Y nytn 517w Sy;n 0na DIRWIN D11 4 9IN’22 .90 19INA
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NYANN MNNN NNPH 2.5

DMANM OYTYPNN DXV MAVIVI MMIMNNNM GVIVN YIDIN D¥991D T 2APY NIV N NXIAPN DY I2Wani MNNN
MY TN wnnny

MMIYIDY DIPNY DINPIN ,DOWTN DIPN HY NHYNRAIY DIV 2.6
SIPNNIYNN 39112 MD) 10905 MMNT Mg TAS 1 9INDIa MNNIYN 1PNY Pdn .2.6.1

NVPYTAN MNND DYAITN GIN N9V TPMNHN THIRNIVNN NPPTNHY N2 NND MYIT MIIN ,NPXNY DRNNA
NP2Y NIN AUNRD DN XMNN PN TPRNIVNN DPPTHN DY YN, NPPNY ORNN JNDY TIMYNYNN TOIRNIVNN
MM TN OYHRNYNRIY MLINN JY YL NIN 7D 920 19INI MIAXD 111 DMDIN MNITA JNIN INN YN OY TN NIwnNa
DIMT OMN DY DDINNA DMIAPN D»IVIN

MNYTN YWNRNYNN YIDIN 1 TY02 DX XMINND NPNIY MUY THIRNIVNN NPITHN DY ¥RV PNan ar IAS 1- 5 pprnn
DY YN NN TNX PR O PNAN PPENN L,GONA .0MADIN MNTL INN XN YN PIANY MIVAND D»ADIN
JPMIND NPRY TIRNIVN NPITHN

NIV TPRNIYNT NPPTHD NN G0, NPXNN DIW» MIAPYa .2023 MHIYY DOMHYN NINYITA NNHYNXID DV NN
.172NN HY NPNADN MDXDIY ONMMN DXNVNN 2023 MWD DMV MMTN NNDNI

APOYN DIYINN MNIANNNM DYDY NYPN NNTI U1 119N Iy 0201 ,TAS 12 99INDI%2 MNNIYN )P0 - Pdn .2.6.2
$ONN

TMYRIY NIONN TYINT IXNY DMMNT DOWITNND NINIIND DXNTI DX0HNI NIDNN NVN NIINN NN DNNNN NPXNN
INNIND .OXIPN) DMNMY DMINT DOWITN MNP MINPOY DY DI XD NMNRD NOVNY T ,NMIAPNNN N/ D0
MNPOYI NNIVYNRIY 179NN TYINA TN DMINT DOWISN I NNTI DN MAMNNN IN DI PINY MIVITN AW TN
MMPNN SNN DY NPINN .DIPIYI P19 MYIFN NN NMINPDY NONT, DITTPNI DINY DMINT OIWISN MNP

.D»ADON MNTN DY TPMNN NYAYN NNMN RO NPINN DIW»H 2023 TN 1 DM MONNHNN NPIIY MPT

:Pillar 2 519 2P0 — 9921950 9190 MINDM :HDION YY 0Y0N .2.6.3

NN YPINH P20 DMIYYY DMINT DXVWIIN X DXNTI DX DY NI NN MNINT INOVTIN PIN D915 NN
MA»NNN IN DI PONY MYITI XD NIV NPXNY OXNNA .AWYND IPPNI IR PPN TUN 921931 YD1110N DN
0NN DIVYNY MNNNTI NI 12 TN P MIAVIV DN MIRXIND 1D NIN IIN DMINT DXVWIAN P2 NNTI ON
YMIND YT DY N NI, MYTN MDY MIYIIT NPXNN DI ,q0NA . TI9) 7197 JNI 1N DN NNNIND D210 Y9100
MNPNA XONHN 91NN ONN NPIPND MYON DY NYYNN NN PANY DD NMINYTH OWNNYNY TWANIY YNIDINY
AQPIMD DI DIV TR NYYNY PPN IR PPN XN 12

DNNNA YI9MNY NPPNN DIDIS DY TH MON DXNTI DIDNA NIINH NN PNVTIND 1IND 2T PPINN MK
1PN, NINYRID DIWHT TYIND DNN .NPIYDI DONNIVN DNTNINT OMNIPY ,HNNIVN NPT TAS 8 ypn mNIIND
NPMY MPT MAPAN DY 1IN NPONN POINY MDD MYIT ONOTINN PIND NN NPYMY 75 NN M
99 9NND IN 2023 NI 1 DY MDNNNN

DYDY DXVIAY PR PP 750 YN HY TNIND MDIIN MNMNN NYYI NOYTY PNIND 19 NP PYN NPN NNIAPN
A9NY 33.7 N2 INY
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INN LYY ,NON OXTNIND OMADI NMMTI NN MAPNN D32 NPIAPYI NNV 191D NONINN TPRNAYNT NP THN
.NNAPA NIYIN DI DY NPAPYI NNV TPRNAVNN NPPTHN .20 2.6 PyDa

DYPOY 'Y MNINN ©0a 3.1

9 NIV NIWHN NYIN I TND PN NYIIIN T NN NV NN DOPOYN Y9N U 2100 npw»n NXIAPN
N2 YN NYOII NMI2IYHN NNNYH MNXIVND ,MNDT NYYI N ,NVN NXIAPN TWRD NHPOPNN NVOOY .NYINN
NPYNHN MNIT NIYNI MINPII NV NN .NWINI NYY NYIYNN NID MYSNHNI NON MNIWN DY WIWnD nviddm
LDINN T KV NXIAPN T DY MPIMINN

POINY YD NMNDT,NAN NIANN DY NPMINNNN NN (PO MIATY) DIDIIN NN NYIN NXIAPN , NV YTAIN NY2
DRNN2 NNV NINNN NYPYIN ,TYIN IMND INN .NAN NI2NY DOONPHN PN HY DINNK D¥297) NVYY PN
NN PAY NYPYNN DM Y NN MY 1NNNN P WIONN .NONNNN 172N NXIAPN YW Nyawnn nTnd
INN NINKIN N MDIIN YOI TOM NI 1IN WY

MOMYN MNRPOYI MNYD MHana NYpwn 3.2

. Sabra Dipping Company-) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A ,nPMNN MAMYN MRPOY SNYI NMDT W NNIPH
.DXOMWNN DITONN Y IV DIDY NMDT ¥ NXIAPY DN DOMWN DIITON 1 MOMWN MNPOY

VY IN NVDY KD TN, 1PDIWWANT NYADIN NPITHN DY IIMINND NYOVN NXIAPD ¥ 1N MY 117D MNYD MIaN
.NYAXNN M 50% Ty 20% YW NPINNA 1Y ARLIANNN ,NAMYN

NYTA 592) Y PMINSINA NNAPN PYN , DRNNAY , NPT MDY Y9NVIN PN INNN MONMWNN MINPOYN MDY
D2IWANN NN NINDNA TNIRHDN TOIN NN

VYN IN THPMNNN NYAYNN DY TIN MITNDN MY NOVIYI DRNNA NINVNN NN NPTNND NYVWA NP Nya
MINXIN MDION PYD NNDNI ,TON N NN NYIYNA NPID NNYPYNN YON> PHN DY NXIIAPN ,NOMWUNIN
STOAM PN NYT2 MINN

VNIV 20 RO PINNDINX JPIDI0 IWUNX TIIN P32 NMINNDN MITRNT MV NIV NDNOVNN MO NPIYN NXIAPN
YPYNNN PON INNK,MINN IYN TN JITY APIDTI MIMVNN ,PYD INDN TNy

DNNN2OIIRNDNOINYN NVIWIYN NMDT X2 NHYIIN 1PN INKRDY IFRS 9 mn1IND oxnna nYNN mO9I1vmn 1ON NIt
JAS 28 mNIND

NXIAPN MNDT MY OXONPNI M NN NXIAPN DY NNYPYND 920 MIIRNDT NV NOIW 9Y D¥19NN DI 10N
192NN YV DD DTN NN NN NNIIAPN DOND NOPIN NNV INKD .DMPI2D TN 9T02 NPININI
YN DXMNIA NPYNA WTNN PONY NDXNNN NXIAPN ,00NNT DY INNTH NPININ 192NN ,)910 INNRY ,ON .NPIMNN
910 NOY DYTDANA PONY NNNWN DXNNIL NPINY INRD P9

IR NHOP YN ,TIY DTPD NIND) MITNNDN MY NOOW 95 RYMVNN NIMYN NPDYI NP NN NYPYN
STV DT DY NYANHNI MDVPMIIN

DS YV NOIYN NYSIN NP ,NYPYNN DY NOIY DINY 19TV D HY NIIANNN NDVPMAIN PRI NP NN
.Y 10 NINN PN VIV OMNY P MIIN PNV NYPYNN DY Nawnn 12

,MAYNN 712 D120 DY NDW PNRNN MVYN NOVXY DY INRD ,NYPYNN DY D902 TIYN TWNRI 101N TIY NTN TON
STOA AN NITA MMINK MRNIN PYDY P3N INYID DI NXPIN AN TIY NN TON
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VN MY N ¥a0NI MNPOY 3.3

YTIND GPINAY POONN YV 290 NNIAPN MIIN DY SVIADIN MDYIN YIVHNT MPINNND XIN YIVNI MNPOY
MY2VNI MYNIANHD NYR MY’ 5NN OIPIDH MPINI MNND ,0D) YI0IN DY NXIAPN NYD NYN .NMIRPOYN
PN YT N NN

AYNND DY POOIN YW 19Y DMHDD DMV DY MPTH DOYINN IN D905 DXV PIYIDN DIYINN WY SWI9N
DY2’Y02 TN NN B2 ,0MNITIP BADI NMMTI INNTY NINRND IN ,NNPNN THNN MNYNRIN DIV WDIUY
2909 VAN MNP 9D ,0MINIDN

DYPNYN NXIAPN NMN .DNIMN 190N NNN NN DN DPNINDIA DINNNI DIDIVN ,NOPN DINNA NXIAPN MDY
N MDA INNNN L,OINT MOMYN MRPOYI NN MIIN MYSHNI INWD P2

.DNIN )IP,NN2 PYDA DX INND HDION NN MY 1P DININN 1PI2 YW SWIaN

DNIND 1IP2 920NN DIFON,NANMWYN NVIDY IX THPMNN NYIYN ,NVIOYW YTIIND XX21DN NIN MDA DY viddn nya
NYYI DMPY NYA G0N .WIHIN TONN N NNINND POND TOIM NINID WINND INDN NIND MDYIN yany
920¥HN DDV YV HOONY PON NN NIINT NVIIYN NDY TIN ,NIN MW NYDI5N N2 NI2NA NIANN DY NPNNN
VDY NNPN PPRY NI YTNND DNPH INRD DDI1DN NN IIDINY YWD YW1 DY

0’1517 ,11N2 MHIN PNV NIN MDY M0 NIN MDD YTHNN IX WIAPNNY MRNON X2 WY HWI9N 5535
NAN 1IN PN AN NIN MDY YTHMNNY IX DAPTIY MRNDN DY 1100 TUNXD .DXTMINHDT MNYTI TOM NI
WY HYIINN DYTOAM DONNT,PYY NINIIN TNY2

PN ONXIN NN Y915 NN D191 IV ,INT MDY NYPWNNNI POND DY) NON MDD DIV DIYIANN
.DMIN YIPN PONd

NIND NP S WINI INNN R IN MDYAD YTRMNY INIZIPMY MIXNYDN )1V

0”0’ 9vIn 3.4
091 DRV D010 003 3.4.1

DM TN NIMPIA NIYRID NN NXAPN ,INP YII9 MIMPE MIN> 01N NXIAPN HY DXDIAN MPDI) 21
SPYONN DY DMINN OININD TXY NN NXIAPN I TN NNIVYNRIYD DY) DIDINAN DX A1

2DIAN DN HY NPANT IN NYIIID PIYINL DNMY 1NMIY NPDY NMDY NIDIND IIN MY NNIYNIYD 1721 Y039 D)
.POYN PNN Y NNYNRID DY TTHN YNMYNRYN NN 257 D510 DO NNIAPH MMPY

DIMPOT NN PYN DY 1PN NINAD DX DN DY NMINIPY INNVPI MNXPOY WPNND MM NXIAPN
INT NP MNPIN NN NYI) NN 1PN DN NN NYNIN 172NN 199N MINPOYA

023NN DXYIANN OIMIIN MITNT NXIAPT DY NPHIND NI TYND (MMPY MIATD) 010N DIDI) NYN) NNIIAPN
NPOY Y0IIN DINND DOYIANN DNIMITNN MDD NN HAPO NN NN NN NXIAPN TURD N, MIYPI0 d0INN
2NN I9IND 1IN YDINAN DN DY MOYANHD MIAVNN OMON YD N2

N2WNN NXIAPN ,P0INAN DN JY MOYIANN DOYIN NMAVNN OMDN 55 SMIND J9INI M) NXIAPN YT ON
2D DI PONY

DNNN2 MNNXI ,DMHIND DIMIIN MPITN NI INIVNY OPDY ITIN NINDNI DOPIMNN NNIAPN DY 2INN Y PYON
:IFRS 9-5

NXAPN YW POYN MPOYAN NDDN NYIND MNP M °

M2Y5 MHINY MXNN ONNN DIPIYIY TIIN )Y DIAN °

NMTPIN IKP YD DMAYN °

912Y NNINN DAPYN YR DT JIP MNDVYN P TN DO ION DMDINS DXDI) PHA DMIND DI M
NN MOYA DY T2 IIN D»DIY DIV, ToHY DXNNA ONIYNN NIPDY G0ON YW Yyt Ty

NN OXTOIN I3 MDVPIRN NN NVIY YIDOY TN, NNNMN MY MAPIW MNPNL DXTTI) N DD
NXIAPN MMPY NAY . TOIM NN D21 DY TIY DT, IYY OWIINN DXTON IN ONNT TP MDION T
NOOANKDN MYIAN NXIVN NYAP NXIAPN . PYWINT PN DI TNND (O9IVI IN) DINONT INIYRD YTOIN NN NN
(DYP9DN MAIN) MNP INIYN YTOIN PRIYND YTOIN NN TITHD N1 HY MIMPON M2IN D) DY 9N 2
PIVYI NN MIRXIND TOIM NNIY D9
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091 02019 0°9°VdN 3.4.2

MMNNDM B2IN >IN P PNNI MTRND YN PNIP0D NDOWYNN NN DNNXY MIN DY 1555 91T NMIRPOY NYSIN NNIAPN
1N DMV DN VIDW NYIY NXIAPN 1AV GO TN ID 10D ,A010M NPPN P11 NOPN YNNI TIN»M)
DYPWINN ,DXI DD DXPYWINI NPINN NNIAPN TO OWY .PIONN MYYa DMPWYD NHYNN MLPN DYO
NPXINY NPTNY MNPOYNY,MYa0n By NPSNNY (Forward) nymny mXpOYN 9Py 0X2579)19 DN DO0INN
MY A0 NPT THINN Y92 DXTTHN NHIYRID DD INTH MINNAYN YDNND DXAYNI DINY ION DI .NND Yy
ATNNNN DY TOAN NNID MAPTI DINMY NINMN NPOY NMDY . TOINT NINID DXAPTI INNN N DPWN TWUND N
PAYINN MYV NN DITOIN DINNT 1PN MPINN MYYA DAIXIN MTNND YY NPTNY MXPOYN DOTOSM DN

9 (MINSIN) MDIDN DX

Map v 3.5

STV YT DM20NN DXTON 12X NN NI (DXPADY MNTPN H512) MYY 295 W1AP W1 OV NTTIN NXIAPN
PIYINI ONNY MY NADN MY D3 191 N NTIAY DN MOY NODID NNNYI NPN NXIAPHY DI0)N MDY
TN NY TN NOON OPON .NDMNN MININNY I9IND Dwad 51 XINY TI0 DWNITH ANND) DIPHY ©IIN NNIAND

ONDND ©NON 01 NINKLIAS 16 -5 DNNNA YI2P WIDT NITINA DYXTRIY DN TYNI 1P Y151 DINDN ND)

DN ,NNY DN TN 92 OPAY (MPMYHYH NPNNPN MP>T2 M2I9) DOMYNYN DXPON DI N¥IAPN MNDNI
.DNYY DMNO0N DMNN TN YY DDANNA DXNNDINY MNINN YV (D7T719) DOVII9) DOPMYNYH D7D DYAIVN

IN NN .ON2 YIIYNN NPTDNY NPHITI MIAVN MMAN NI TUNI IN DV OY W1IP WIDT P09 NYN) NXIIAPN
PYDA VI D91 ,D271902 159D DI NN VI NNINN IRNYN 290 DOYIAPI Y1AP WIDT VM NN TOIN
STOANY NN NYTA IV 295, MINN MINN IN MINK MDION

%98 DX Y1AP YIDT DY D190 TIVNN PONI MM MINK MAPIW MNP VAP ¥IDT V9N PON NN MDY
SY D902 TN YN YDINA ATTNHD THIN MDY DX NXAPN DX DININ N2 NMIVIN DTNV HPDIDON NAVHN
ATNNNN DY TOOT NN MOPTI MIAP ¥IDT 07719 HY MOV NPINN MDY .Y GOMNY NP ¥IDT V9N PHN

VNN MNP VI VI DY PON DI DY NINWNN VI NMPN 19 DY ION 1PN NVOY 290 TOIM NNIY 991 NN
NNN PWNRY MDY MYPIP VYD oD
:2021-2023 DMWY OMIPOYN NNAN YNV PND

%

(2.59p>y1) 1-5 17°5N2 MYPIPY DM
(4-20) 7p>y3) 4-30 TYNY MNON
15-20 15995

3-33 NN TYINY VI

2-33 951N DNV

NNN MNAY TN OXNNA DNITIVAY, 0PI NNAN NVIY) DNYY OOWINWN DN TN ,DIDN DY 9V 1Y
MO

DOYMN SNY2 %0 3.6
POSM 3.6.1

T2 PONN MIAPW MNPNA .OMYNN dNY DD NNDNI XN NN MIIN DY MWD NINRNIND INNIY POINN
STV DTN AW DITOIN NN MDY 2D

D'TNINA D'D0D NINIT| T 21




éf- 127792 9Y9) DINILY
ollroe”

OYMINDN 020N MMTHY DI9INA
(TUNN) H>MNNN HINNAYND NIP1NIN 9%y - 3 NINA

M 9PN 3.6.2

NN 190N DMIYTN DIININY MINY YWY MIDIN NNNN NXIAPT . INNNNN DY TOIM NNIID MOPTI IPNND MMNDY
MTOIVN,NNIAPN YT DY DOVOVIN ,DMTINMY DM NIDN MININT DXINWI NINAD PIYIHII MNYPH NMDY MDY
NPIOYY YW NTIAY 1O MYDID IMNMNY MNDY .D»WNN YNYA DD MO ,D7YNIN dNDA DIDIID NIOND DININI
ANDOWY DI MIDIND 1Y PINND TY 1I2AXIY MINN MY

NXIAPNY Y95 VIS PYNIN YNDA DI NITINA TYY DIINY DI DY MINNN Y NIWNNI YITON DY NYNLN NNDY
NYPYH DNINAN VIAPNNY DXMPYN DN 172NN TN ,PUNIN ONDA D)2 NN NN NIANNY YOI .02 NVNWY
IOV TN PO YT HY DIPADN IN PYN VNN YNIPWN DXININ DI NYAPN NIANNY DXMPYNY YD . YN 2IWNN
M"Y, 07NN DN DXMPYNY YO .AYNLNN SMPY NPIDN DY NIRNINA NXIAPN NN, PYN 2NN PID IONY
YN 2NN STPY NOMN AXPA NINXIND T NYNDVLIN

nnnon 3.6.3

,DNOYW DMWY WD DPNN TN YTRIN 29 DY TN IPN NVOYW Y TOIN NMNID NPT DOYMN YNDA DD HYW NNNON
WINOVY DIPNT DI0IIN 1AV TVININ

:2021-2023 DY DOMYN NNNINN NV 1OND

%

10-20 DHIMN
(25 7p>y1) 10-33 D2WNH NN
10-25 OMINK

OV LT NTY MYO NNX DN NON PNVIY 191N DXNNMN DN TN dND2 OMN TN Y1 DXDIN PO
.DXDD1 DMINDN DMNIDPDY DNMN D) DXNNNN DPNY DOYMN dNYAN DI

o0M9Nn 0o 3.7

2Yn ITONN ONN NN TN ,NION DYIH IN NN XN ITONN DX NYDIP NXIIAPN ,NIONT MIVPNNN TINI
(N Y W NINN NNPN THIND DN 1D ,NNITN D32 YIdIWa DIDYI MY

127 ; NMMHN D2 YIDIWN NPYITIN MIAVNN DI NN NYYNID PYND MM (K)

.MINN D32 YIDIWN NN MDY M (2)

NOD TNN 170N 2595 ,NP9N 23970 DMIVPI NPON Y2307 DPRY D257 DYDIIN NN 1IN NOAVN NXIIAPN
.DX2¥590 NTI9N

TN NYYYI WIDOYW YY) 1991 9732 DYDY 1M XD 199N D2 D210 MY NXIAPA N1POND MINPDY2
NAPN TNNT DRI ,MHYYN DTIND DRNNA HIVN YWD NIDT DI, NNYNID NI INRD .NXIAPN DY ONIDINN
D21 DTPIND DIIN HY OOYINWN 1PN TIN IN NINN

TIY HY2 NI DDA D33 112 NN IR MY TY DY XD NNVY MIPIN 729D MVPIAN NYPNN NN NHY1NI NXIAPN
1991 XYY ,NONN NPN TIND IV PN NOOW 295 TOAN NN DXIPII NPIND DT 12 JDINI MINVN ,TINI
29051 A¥AN DY NITI MAONNN IR/ D)

IN TIARND TPINNN T HY NIDIDHNN MNPN DY TN 910720 MINGI NN NPINN NAY NNMPND NYAPI NIINN NNPN
MODNN NN .INNNND ,MNNNRD IR WNNN XD IN UNHND NXIAPNY A0 19IXL ONT) DX NPINN DX YD
NYHID NIINNN NN WNINNY 20 19N XTI ¥ NINIAPN NN NOINRD TINNIN NDMP NXIAPY N2 MONN
JDNIND WIDAD XIAN IIXPY MDOIN MITNIVN Y2)0 NYT D1P7W NV INKRD NNT ,NPONT NMIPNI 1NN
NMYRIY OXTTM) NONR OIMDYN .(TT) 19980 TN DX1PNNN TTH2 DMHNY DNINYN NPIN IMOYN DIY N¥IPA
DN NPY YN IWNRD .NONN MAMNNN DY DT DHYIN NIONN NINN TN OPPN TTH VIDIW > DY
ANDOYN MDY DI THD DTV MAYNNNN NIND,TTH NPWNN Y2130 DOPNY NN MIT HY DIMIIN

T MTPN O3TOHN D22 IAKIY NN NN ,MOYN NVOWA TT0) YIDIY MDT 02 ,NINN NDNN TN INND
D»NN TN N DY TW-1P DIDA HY AWINND NN .1NTINN 1PH2 MAPNNNN DY WTINN MMITTNI PI2 DNINNDI 1INV
DI OTPIFD,NPHIND NPINN NP IN DOVIYN
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:2021-2023 DMWY OMIPOYN NNAN YNV 1IN0

%

4-40 DN
14-35 25990
9-60 N9p MTY

INTY ON NVINNN DY NYAVUN TUR) NXIAPN NVIOYA TUR MDXDI XNMIYHYNI NPY IN MMYHIYN YN MYNIND Nya
N990)W TPNIN WNNN NI IN,N7ONN NOPN NY*2PA 100 OTIP NP0 OV NN WNNn NXApnY 920 19183
OMITIVHN NINN IMNZVYNY DRNNA NINN MPNNN NN YTNN NTTIN NP ,NIINN NPN NY2AP DY NP
9210 IN LYY MODT DI) THID 1M MIAPNNNN HY DDA TV NPYN OTIVA PPN NI 1YY vidw TN

ANIZN NNDIN YIDWN MDT D) DY D190 TIYN DX TOAM N2

NI 3.8

,277N DYPOYN TONN2 NN PNN YTIIN NIN 1) YIDINDOINY .DNIY TN, IV WINIIONY IN MDY 29D TT0I ININ
1990 NN MWITTN NMIDY TN NNDYND NMDY YT M523

: NI 19IND 7P YN NVOY 29D NYIAPI SNDNN MY

Moy Hrad PVIN MININY DD 19N
.NAVINKD My *aH 1795 NI dNYA NININ
Mavinn Moy *ad MNP OMININ

001)°9 DNV Y0 T NP 3.9

MNPV M0 ,02N0I1TD MNP MTND DIXPOY NP WINN POIND NNPN NXIIAPN,TIVD DT NN TNND
,TIVN DT NPN TNNY )0 1N . NPNNN NYIN I IPONND NNPY NMAY AUN ,DOPDYN PIPS DIV N¥IIPA
(DM M2NN MTNY) DXTI93 DT DN MDITN DIIMP )2 ,IN12 M MNIY DX OXPIINN
NAVYNN 92 DD YV NN, TIY DT DNINDYD DIY TUNI 19N 19IND IN YA TN MY NNX NYNIN N¥IAPN
DOMN NINTI NN ONJA DOWIDY DMN TN OOV DYDY INA L, PUINN MONDN DNMNIHD MININ MM HY
NY DY0I) DY DIV DT WIDOWY PYTY DINT DINY DOYMN N1 DIDI) N/ ,DIDNDN DOINDN DN
D192 DYV TI DY DOWIANNN ,M20I1 DMWY IR DR IDNY NN, 7N TAS 36 NnSINNa 0NN DO
DY IYAN DIV NPT TIND DN ,0DYA NI DN AUN,POINN LYNY D01 KD DIDI) .NAVN T2 i N
290N 28NN DY NIT TIND D52 0N MINNY TN NP

MT2 MINK MNNNY NN TN NI DN TN DY DMINX DIYMN dNJ2 DIDIN PYLINN TIY NI TOIMN
TP N

oYYy Mavn  3.10

NYTNN NTPONY NYINN

Y520 NTI9 MY DONIAP DIMOVWN NNOVN NXIAPN 1PAOY NPDYN DD INND NION NN NITHN NTPONY MION
SY D217 27 NAY NI NTPIND N2ION NXAPY .DYADN DIMIYN DOV NYNNWYN IN TPVIVYN MIANNND NY MINY
DXVIV DINDVN T HY NN MIDIDN 11,1963 H7IUNN ,PNVIAN XA PIND 14 PYD DI DNV NXIAPN T2
MOPTI MY INKRY MIAVN PHA NITHN NTPAN NN TPINY NXIAPN MNINKD .MV MIINDI DID MNP

.DMVP DMV DTN PO 19510 IY MMPN TOAM NNIY NINXIND
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I DO DVYN MNPOY  3.11

TN YAPI NPIYNN TN NPININD DY PINN INYN ,NIINN NN NYIIID MMISIIN 2N 7T NPNIYN NNIIAPN
1N YW NYWIANN NMIPN THIND NDIA NN 1252 MY HONIN NYD 21D Navnn .Black & Scholes Y12 winrw
95WN MXNN NN NAPIT NXIAPN DWW MM TYR NPXAIND 90N 272 172NN MWD DY DOIANN MININD

.19%ANN NPN 79 DY DTV TN HPapna

mwuHon  3.12

NN ,72Y2 YNINNY PN IRNIND  DYANYN IX THVIYH 7PN MINNNI ¥ NNIAPY TURI 1IN NYIaN
.M2MNNN PIZYOY NPHITI MALN DY IDPHY DIIIN YIT 7D NN TYUNII 12PN 19INA NTNIND

92119V DI20N .MINNPN NN PYON NI2NN ON YAPN NWYNY NYYNY INTY, DN P ,0ON MY DI NN NXIAPN
.YI9NN DI DY NI PN NDVN PHa

my’an 3.12.1

PX2 NYISN .NXIAPN DY D)0 DIPOYN TONNA DMVIYN DIHNN NIRXIND 1IN NPLAYNI MYIN PI2 MYIN
,72Y2 WNINNY MR IRKIND , NYHNYA M2NNND IN INN NPVIYN MINNKD NNMP NNIAPY TWUNRI NI MYIN
579 J9INT NIMN TN 119 MANINNN PIDP0D D551 DXARWNID WATN NXIAPN ¥ KXY TUNND 920 1IN IUNRD
YT D2APNNY NYXANN 1570 12 2A¥NY IN NXIAPN NAIVY NIMNDN D¥DDNN 12 A¥ID DNMNN NON MYIN HY Hvd1a
LDTPMINYIND NIN NI INNRND POINTY IR YN DPVAYN DXIIN A2 DINANT DMV 2DIN MY .50% -5 NNNI

(FPMNN NOX PPN NYIVN) YNNIV 1Y 297 NN 1PN MYINN )00

MNIN MNANNHNN 3.12.2

N I ,NINN NN DIIDN NN TIIRD AN XY UKD N ,NPYIYD MIAVNA YW YITHY MNAN KD TUND
.N1Y55D MAVNA YIIWY NYIDP M0 DY NIPNa LYNY , NN MIPNHNNY

a1 M"Y 3.12.3
NN NN NOTIOMN 22D MPYD NYINA NXIIPN NI 172 IWUN 2210 MNPY NN DYDY NYHN NHYMN NIaNN
IXAPN DY MOWNIN NMDOYAY MONPA IR TWN) 2207 NPYWA NN MIDNIIN ,0I2NN NDYNN MYIANT MWD
STOAM NN NIT2 TMINK MIRKIN PYDA 3207 NPYN I IRNNN DX NP NNIIAPN

MINN 3.12.4
NPINNRT MNYPN MYIT .PINT WITID, NI TN PIY DMPYD DY 01DD5 OMNPINT NPINK NPNIYN NP

JTOIN .DPTVDN DM HY NDDIID TPNWRI 1797 .MPYY D00 DHN 12 TWURD MM 1N NNLVIAN NON
PN TN PTYNN NPINND MNVWPN NNV
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monan 3.13

DO1INH NDION .NPINKI NMPNN PMPY INN NI DANINDN DM 7712 NPINT,MRPYNI NI NIINI NPOW NNIAPN
NANN NNIIAPN N2 NNNNN NN GPYNN DIIDI MPOY NI DXMPYI IN P21V NVIDVYN TYRD NI MMPY DY
NNIAPN,NMIPEY MINND IN DNV NPADNA 3N INK T IUNI .0 MDY IX MINND OMND NNNNI PRI N1ND
NIV NN PIPAY PAD NONYW MPONT NYIN NNIAPN MDIINN 2 TONA 55 77172 .NPOY MIPOYN PADN M M2

MPOY BNV M9 DMV IN MNNDI NV

02989 N9 MYIIN

TNXY .IND MD50N DMIMP 0NN PIN I IUX ,MMPY HY DY DMI0D NI NI2ND ,MNPYHM I1THN DINN2
IMPYT MNNVHIXRIYN NPT NPNA DY DDINN NN 172D 2982 NNIIAPN NIVNNHD MNPYN BY DIHND N3
NPON DY Y95 T2 ,MPYY NI DI NVYIYYN NIV PITN NTIPIA MO MDVNN PN NIV MDION
.MPOo oM IMN

DINWN NN

NN NPOYN NN DTN NYDID NIAPH .INNYND DMYYY DXD1DD Y1 NPOYN NN ,DIINN NN DOXHIN2
YMYNYN 13 wnand Xov (highly probable) NMax 172 AN TWRD P ,)IPYN DX N, MNYNN NIHINN DIOD
559)¥ MINWHNN NNRNN DD JTAIN NN TINN DT NMIDTYN NXIAPN HIDINY M2V NIDIDNN DIV OY TNyl
.NPOYN PNNI

NN MDY e
DYVTNN NMHPND DN NN PINAD MIT ¥ MMPOD DMININ MR DIHNNDN DN
DMANY YHY DXIN HY 197 19002 AWNNN MNYHNN NININN NN NN TIVD NV NVHNWA NXIAPN
DO NN MIAPY 1IN DY MINWN NINN DY DTNIN NYAIN Y2 MYOITN NN NNWMN NXIAPN 10N INND 0T
T30 MITNNY MANNN NI NYN DMIPNI .NDIIND INDY NPOYN NN 9505 \NNIY MINWNN NNHNN
907 MDY PYD NNNNND TID OININN NN NITNA AP MDIN 12X2 DI MDIDN PYD NHNNN

mnn e
NHYMN NNEAPN .NMPON DY NPMYN MYIIN TOD DXNN MR MNIN DMINDN MMPOD NPNIYN NNIAPN
Y20 MYAITN NN NPWMNI NXIAPN 191 INNRY ,NTINT MWD DNRNN DX TYNY YT MINN TIVN NOVOY NN
LDNTOIN NYN
NMpPYY YWY NN
D191 91 (DXINN N P2 MPNY ,5WNY) HPMMPIY NN DY NN IN NNSYN NNIAPN D201 DMIPNI
MPOo DIYYNN DX NIN ,NPOYN 1NN Y MLPND D99I100 YN 0IIHDD .(D12IW) DNMP HWNY) DINN DIV IN
NI N2 TITH NN ,NTIA NPOYI NIV MPHY NNHDIVY NNNNN NI NIPNDY DITIN NPV IR NIND N NXIN
.DOPADN MINN MYII2 NYALVNH

N9 DIMIIWI DIPND SMIPY , 039 392 939131 MO

NPOY Y92 .19%2N MXPOYA MMMPY DY NIYPNN NH1APN 1N MDYS NNHDNI DM PNPO DINNI NIND N¥IAPN
,7IN2 WITIVW 9D ,NONN P12 DIDMP PNV DION 7122 D9 SY D99 DNPINY NPINN NPODN N¥IAPN ,N92aN
NXAPN Q0N (DYY 3.12 TINI MYIDN KYNL TPRNIVA NPT IX) NPINN MYIOND NI 11 NOH NPINN)
ST9932 NY9PIN MDY NDHN NPINK IT,NPINN TYINT PV DIDIO NPPNY 120 NPINN NPODN

191972 N9XAN NPOYA YN NMNNND 190N MNMP 23 NYIP NXAPN

PN OMPYI DN I NPADNR @
DYYONN D157 NPION e
DL NIHN OMPYI NPINRIMPY @

NPIINN DY DOOMN DXTINN NPINN PNND DRNNA DY VNN MNINNNY NPOYN PHN NN N8P NNIAPN
DONMN DIDPN TIN ,MNAN MMNIINNKHD NNX DD DXTINN NPINN YPNN NN NTOIN NIAPN Td OVWO N¥IN
.198Y DONMIN

MALVNN NN 22PN TN YAPN MPIIY NN AT TIIND NDIINA NN NNIAPN NPINNT NIDVNI NINPNY DN’
.MPON XN DN 92 MPNN T NDION NN NNAPN ,MPNNN dMPYI TUNI D NN
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,MIPYY DMIXINRN NDN DY, 19T NTIPIA NDIDNA NN NXIAPN DIDONNN DY NPODNI DINN 112 NPOON 10
.DMIXINNN NOVIN P99 NVDY PN NPT NYYW MININ MINNHD NN NNMPN NXIAPN 1T NTIPIAY IR

0235 MINNNN AMDY .WTN MPYY DM 1D NYIAN NN NIY MPINN 1ID0Y NN NOHNY NNSYN NP
NoPNN IR NHY»N NIAPN .DXMIPYM MNINDN YY MPYY NHAYNN DY 2Py XINY YAVY D02 DY MNNN
DING INX NNX MY NN DN DY NNNOIN NPN TN NN MIYND NMDY DY TN IRXIN N0) NPLPIMN

DX1YTY 1712599 DN MPNH o 3.14

MY DNN/IITHD DTN NIIDN INNWYY NP IVAPNNY NP NP NXIAPN DO 1IN DY MNIT
YPYN MY DN IVAPNNY DXTITIYTI NI MDY DN INTWY DITITIYT .NOVIVY

NDINN HY DYON MXNHN 3,15

Y2 DNM NN, TOIM NNID DXAPT DINTI DIDN) DIAVIV DOON .DXNTI DIVIV DON DY9ID NDIDNN DY DION
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PN DY TIY NTPD DNYPN DY )IDPDN NI MMM 7272 10ND 14.3 1IN INI DXIDN DXV

MNYN MNNNN

MIINM 1IN THI NMITOIYI MMINN NPLAVH MYIAN PHIT NMNYNN MYIINN MDD NYIPY NPNIAY H7MN D»P NHaNa
NYTN NN DYDIYHNN,NIINT DYVH MYAN DXT9VNN DMVAVNT JPSYN NYT NNN MIIAPNN IV Y PR .NYY MPIMN
AWRD .D2APNNY (MNS IN 50%) 19X NN IX (50% DY) MMISY NYIANN DR DIMNNDY ,MYIANN DY NNDNNN MDD NN
D»90IN MNYTY 22 7INI NNDN NYXAND N M TR ,NIAND 319D NWIAN NNV KD ,52PNND NMON NN NYWIAND
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MY’2ANN NN DX PPNVPITN DY D»HDIN MNITN NINIAD DTN NIPID,NIANN DY DPMIYN DMDIN MNYTH MYIN 0N
192NN YW DMVIAYNT TPSYY MDD ,MY>ANN DIDD MY ,MPPANN YOI 12392 NN ,NIAND THI NITOW MMDNN
.D”9DON MNITA 112 NYINNN MDIDDY ) NNINN MDD 112 NOWNN NN NN

NVPRTN XY ON MTHY

YMYNYN NYT POV YN NXIAPN NOTIN NYIT) ,DRNNAY ,VIDY MMNN DY 19 19002 DN IINXD NNV NXIAPN
MIN NYIP IUN, 0N MITHY MRPOY NXIAPY .DMNINDIIN OOMPHRN DHN YPIND ONNNA DN MTINY MYISN Nwapa
MIPYR MYY DIND OMANND DYDIID PH2 MYIIN NN NXIAPN 92N DXPOYN ToNN TPRT NN 1)) PNV OHN
NNV NN PANDN DN MIAN ON .DXIDN DN MMYYNL 2NN NOIY MIVAND IUNI 7PMDIYN JY DDINNA , 0N MNP
YT DY TANDN NNIVN YIAPN NIV NMPNA NDION DY DIXONY MYIINN HY DIWINN WY D190 NNYIIY DHN MIANNH
.NDIONN HY DXON 1272 PNY 33.6 1IN IR NPNXTN XD DN NMITHY Y20 G0N Y715 .0NN NMYI

D'TNINA D'D0D NINIT| T 28




* 127792 9Y9) DINILY
; -
olln6e

DYTNININ 090N MMTY DY9INa
PIN MY NP — 5 INa

MTIN GO YN .DINDN NMIAYNNM DD DY NN MNYN NIX MIPY NXIIAPN NYIT 029057 MINYTH MDD TNND
: DYNIN DN 5593 IN MY NYIPA VDWW MNINN

; 1ONY OYPINN DD 71272 15.3 IN2

S TN ITY MINN MAPNNT MNNDN 272 19.2 IN2
; TIN DD DIYWYN YITON 1272 21 N2

DD DPYIN 7272 26 NINA

MIPOIND PIN MNY MITITH JNNY DI PIVNN DN DINNIA NXIIAPH NYHNYND ,1MA1NNN IN DI DY 1IN MWD Nyapa
S YAPYTO ,NOIYN WIWYW DINNIN DY DDIANNA PIND MNYN XITNI MNT vIdYd

DT NMIAMNNM IN DXOD DP¥9 PIVA (DIHNIND NI) DIOVIND 07 PNN : 1 1N .

20 1 111072 O DYRY,PAIPYIIN PIVIN ,PIVNN DN DM : 2 1N .
D3N PIY NI DY DDA DPRY DN : 3 NI o
D'TNINA D'D0D NINIT| T 29




* 127792 9Y9) DINILY
; *
olln6e

OYMINDN 020N MMTHY DI9INA
N MmN - 6 9Na

MIPIY M2 MHan Y373 y 1 6.1
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193NN MY 2021 2022 2023
ONWY 80 80 80 17¥2 NN DINIVY
ONWY 40 40 40 (1) n7ya 53 NN ONN YIY NNV MIASNN
INIWY 100 100 100 17Y2 DI DINIVY
oM 100 100 100 Strauss Coffee B.V.
nlvinl 100 100 100 (2) Strauss Russia LLC

.YI9N MDY NNMP 1IN OIN .50% 1> NXIAPN DY NYIANNN NIMNIT NOY .07YA NINIL DINIWVYOIT DY nptnn (1)
.Strauss Coffee B.V.>1 5y npinm (2)

901 Y199 -Ma mHan 6.2

NNNN ,NXIAPN YW NNON MOYIL PTINN NN, (7P OINIVY”) Strauss Coffee B.V. ;2023 'Nna 23 o»a
171929093 Napn N9an”) Atlantic Grupa d.d -9 Strauss Adriatic d.0.0 -2 MPINNNY 100% N1 DOV Y
9IND INT 29DIN AXNN DY NYITN TINN INNRD NPOYN MNTPNN MTIN DX9DN DOV .(NNHRNNA ' IPOYNI-)
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023299 Y DN -~ 7 N
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2022 2023
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283 234 D222 MM DN
234 283 NYTPO
517 517
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MIIRNND NPTH 431873 31 B HYTUM PNA Y991 NN
mryan 0P
larin 2021 2022 2023
9”172 50% 50% 50% (1) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
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291929 YIND MMPYY IPI¥2 P17 NOP NN2IN 191 ,N9P MNDK, 0PN MIXN ,DAMNH NP >IN PN NN NPNYH NI

©Y7201 NP NPNYN , NI, NINMH  NNNRN HPIDD HWI NXAPN DY HORRNDN MNYN NOVIW 35 NYNVHN NPINII 1IN (2)
TPY 27NN 22N DN DOXNINMD)
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Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company
93250842 31 93258473 31
2022 2023 2022 2023

NY 9999

2,054 2,199 216 286 D9V DY)
. 02NN

691 652 56 106 DN MY DIMIN
1,007 1,318 488 461 D9VIY DYRY DOD)
3,061 3,517 704 747 YD) O
1,527 1,633 226 153 MOVIW MMM
RN aYa)

PINY N0 MNINNNN
OMNN OINDY ,D>Pav

715 698 68 - mvaom
417 487 159 250 MAVIV PRV NMMIMNNN
9NN

JINY NPDINS NMMAONNN
DMINN DXNDY ,DXP9D

330 390 99 242 mvrom
1,944 2,120 385 403 nMIMNNN TO
1,117 1,397 319 344 100% o) ©X02) 2"NY
559 699 160 172 V) OYDII NIANN PON
145 154 99 102 THINK MNINNN
704 853 259 274 NYPYNN YY 0’901 Ty
Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A Sabra Dipping Company
931873 31 092 NHYNDNIVY MIYY 931873 31 012 NPPNDIY MVYY
2021 2022 2023 2021 2022 2023
N7Y 299
3,405 5,338 5,839 1,189 655 863 modN
182 294 237 47 (171) 15 MY (T09N) N
(97) 161 149 (20 54 6 INN 5512 (TOAN) NN
85 455 386 27 (117) 21 100% 995 (T997) NN T
1DINN
63 81 92 44 58 51 MNNSNM NN
16 30 69 - - 1 12> MOION
27 67 131 2 5 16 22T NINSN
6 (27) 74 (19) 63 “(5) 100N DY DYON (NMINXIN) MOION
(6) 21 19 (3) 12 3 NN MNNNN
(T097) NN MI2NN PN
36 249 212 10 (46) 14 D902 XNV 510N
.SE USA Inc. np»»nnn n1ana nmwnn Sabra Dipping Company N720 1752 71101000 NDIIN ©N 1PV Gpwn *
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2021 2022 2023
N7Y 9N

35 40 63 (2) (1) Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
35 - - Sabra Dipping Company
5 - - (1) Qingdao HSW Health Water Appliance Co. Ltd
35 33 38 07y »5-10779 DINILY
110 73 101

.21PH2 D1 159 135 11012 DN DIDODN (1)

2021 720X72 31 DYDY 2022 712NNTA 31 OYY,2023 720xT2 31 OO Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A H¥ D9 Ta NIINN YW NPSN 2
15 -9 7Y NP 18 ,n7Y NP 21 -5 DY TO DIIND ,NHNNND ,NIY NP 382 -2 N7 MNIPDM 535 -5 NIY NP 668 -5 1N
297 -5 YV T0Y D»VAYN DITOIN NPAD IX NN NITHN TNXD P wHavwh NYID AUNR ,PVIVN JIPI PINMN ,NNNNNA ,N7Y NP
Trés NN > HY NOHNN NYAPNN IWN DN IINN 1IPA DY) ,NNPRNN ,NPY NP 143 -1 7Y NP 220 -5 NIY NP
12, TNy 00 N P IR PHNn Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A oX .73T273 pHNd NY v Coragdes Alimentos S.A
0NN MMV Q0N DN B PHINNY DIDDN

02905 MMT P8 11.5

Trés Coragdes Alimentos v D>TNINHDN DMADIN MMTN NN NYN DXTNIND DMADI MNYTY NIINN NXIAPN
DORDMIIAN HNIN 1T NIAN DY MHNTH NN yavn .S.A

: M NMPNIINDITIAN ININ DY PAINN MYV ITNY NN MY YINND) N0 POINN YWY 1onD

SPYY DN INDITIAN HNIIN DY PPN YV

D02 5y NPYUN MY Y1 PN WY 1990 199990 WY
% N0 1YY noYPNY noYPRY
: 092 NMNIMNOUNY MVYY
12.4 0.74 0.75 20239520871 31
19.3 0.65 0.67 2022 720871 31

ONDMI2N HNOIN DI 3% -52 HPWN PINNN D901 MIMTN NN TNNY 191 2023 TN 1 0PN
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oY NNTHRYYT NNNINRD NNYVLN DX DI DN ,q900 DY NNNT NI20 .WITD 92y1n DIMOD NI20Y NNDPYW MVLIIN
09051 MNYTA NI2NN NIDN ,MVYIIN NIIN NTHY NIND ,NINT DY TN .00 0¥DD NY DHYS MY>aN NN
NY 120 D1HON WY ,(NIANN PON) 1252 N7Y 1D 30 -5 YW DDV NTINVLIA NY X2 MDIDNL 2022 MVD
MXNNY ONNN2 N2 WD PN 1PAPNNY DIIODN NIA0 NTHYD ,NNRD .2 DWW D MVIAN NN MYO
79997 191192 192PNNY DIMDDNN HIMYNYH DX NNNRN NDXDINL NDIIN IMOD, TIY) NINT,MYIAN NOXNID
D2pnnY HLOYN IV MVLIAN NDYSY DNNNA NY DIYINN DINDDN NIV NYIPY NHYS NI1D
2023 MW1 NI2NN NPIN PM2PYIY NIVIAN NN PAY NI P2 NIV DODN DNNY 2023 120V90 YN ToNN1
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STOAMY NN NYTA RN NV NVOY 290 MHNVIN

,1°02 DN NN HY9N MNP TNSD NTY )P 200 -5 DY T2 N9D NHaNA NYPYNY NXIAPN NVONND TwHna .11.6.3

NP 77 -5 5Y DDA NPNINNN NYPYN 2023 921212 NIANN NYNA,2026 MY ToNNA DIVAD DXNNNY NON TUN
A9ND 22.4.7 9IN2 N DD DOVIAY .NIY
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MNYN NVIY Y97 MONVNN
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.(5.16% : 2022
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INAPPNVPITY TITT NPIZN IN NIINN DY NN YHYAY MNDT NPT ,NIINN NN DY WTNN NPIYM TINN
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DN DIOD Y92 DITIIVN INYY NPIDNT 29 DY .JONI INN YTPAN TININD 2N T30 ONNNY ,1961-K7OWNN
PN DY 9INY IWN

NN NHAIPHI MPIvN 21.2

1301 NN NN MYDID ITIHN MM O PD2 DTN MYNNNA TT0) D1TIIVD MPXIIN AN DY PIND NYN
172NN NPINA NNVDNIN NPNTIND DID2 HY) NNOX NPNTIN ,1PWINN SW WD PNND DTN TYIND
NNTINNM 2PN TP DIV DY) NPNNNRN HYW MNANT OONN TINX L(NPNNIND DY NMAND NP 29 DY
MPYOININ .(NPNDYNHN 2IN TMNX D02 DY) NIX0 NIDN NP2 NPV (NPXNINN AN DOPIINNN DY OO

NN OV NYIAP NYA )NIVN OXNPD) DN PIY ININ DIINY MINIOINIM

:NYTN NMPNI IPINNY NPXNIND DV INNN MWD Y200 VI PPNY

1PN NVO 0N TIN
navn PNn My
PPN NYY nmy NN wnm M N
999 NNIIN 9901
% % 0Ny N’y N’y N’y 0INI? ©Y729 NPWN TIM
o> 487,096
3.22-3.28 20.73-21.89 3.46-4.46 89.93 91.54 10.4 TN 202390118
26 -9 214,000 IN)1292 28
4.15-4.23 20.72-21.90 3.65-4.65 91.12 83.2 3.7 DYoMN 2023
26 -9 1,544,400
3.99-4.02 20.83-21.89 3.65-4.65 92 84.92 27 DYoMN 2023090122
5N 34,540
3.83-3.91 22.07-23.34  3.65-4.65 88.63 85.75 0.7 TN 2023 VOVINA 8

MNYTA INSIND GPHN ION MPIYNN NYANN NAVNN .2024-2026 DIV NNV NN YNV IDWI NPINOIND
YMNINRN NOVANND MMPN 19 HY DMODOHN
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2021 2022 2023
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(NXAPN | MPra2 DA KV PN DY | PNV 1599 N2ANM L=n}al 2015
VIYNN N2 NN 27.12.2016 DY) NN PILYy

oy N NYAN1 YT NN DY | N2NM H7YA THIROPN
A XYM 2016 NNND DOYIAND | DTN P NPVYN
Sya P YHY NMINOD I PN TONOIPN HNOY

.OPYNR 25NN YTYN NAY PN N7y NI
100 YTY DY NMNID TN PN 1AM | OND NN TIAND | ODNHBN WA | 2016 NN
avNN YTVH MY P bya L)

IUON 2023 971981 21 DM PN
oY MPONON NYTIN VavHNN M
MYPA NPADI MYINHD DYINN
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20 MT DY NMINOD PTO NOV M) | DINIVY NAN NN | OVINKN WA RRTANG
5Y MY »ODN HHvIa Hva )Hvda N’Ya DN DM 2018
1’ 2023 ONNA 9 OV .MPON T
NN VOYNN TP IWOX VA PT PO
P YY  wNNY  NIvan  DOon
12NNN 1NNON2 DTSN
NN YPNY AN P2 ,0M DINILVY
DIDD YyINH 0YIVY MPYN DOON
.12NY YMINN ONY

45 0N NS PO OWS YOLN | NIN NN NNAND | VNN YR | 130VID
JDTRY NITOI DANNI MINON | NN DINIVY (Rla) 2020
199 PT P09 1) 2024 DN 6 D2 nrya

17VAN DODN NN VIVNT NP IWON
INNVONA |, DOTIIN OT-DY WY
y§IY AN P ,N92NN NANNN
mMNs Y MINan Yy PYnn
yanh oovwmn 0P 910N
.172NY YMNN INY DIOD

122 192NN THYN DY NYID DI | NI NIAN NIAND | ONNND YN | 92920
VAT NN DINNA D19MND jaVa Rl mYalh o/ DIANYN 2022

2 IYON 2023 12VPIND 22 DM
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: (79YP997 N DYONIT INNDIVY
MNYIN NYIND MYPA NN 22IN YN DDV DMOHINKN LOVNIN YNAD IWNN ,2022 HYI9NI 26-1 25 DIDO2
OTYY NYPA 1YY MYPIANHN NN .N7Y JPDMN 521-0 NI MYPA DOYINN 1IPIY 55100 DID0N NP
0 IWNN NYIRN MYPAN DIPNY .THNNMT NPIANND NYIRD NYPIN NN DAPTPY INKD NYIANN DI NN
NP PON IPORY MNAN T
NMYIN NYINT MIADIN MYPI INY 1IN YN DY DMOIINHDN VIVNIN ONIT IWNN ,2022 5P19N1 27 D12
NXIAPNN PN NIRY NI NN TH) D) YN RO NPY 11D 50 NI NNN NYPAL 21PN D100 .NPNINMD
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TYOIND NYPAN NWINX HIAPTHY INRD NYANN DIDD NN 1ITYY NYPa DY NYSION (YTOIN TIT YY) Ny )P0
NN DIVYN ON DY PN P2 DAYLN NYPAN NPNNDI L2022 12 19 DY . TPNNN NYIAND
AUNRD MYPIN YV TINN YAINR PINNKD DIV OTINHDN VAYNN N2 VONN 2023 H2HVIDA 3 DY NVONNI
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NYP1R .0WPIANN Oy THY2 THINXMD NYIANN NYOIRD DYTN PN NTNINGD NWPRR W) 2023 9210901
.2024 9°99N1 13 OYY 1Y UNN NTNINNDT NYIND
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NDY0N NN TIYND 1IN NXIAPN DY DMVIYNN MINYY .NNYVN YN NVIN NNOYN INND 2024 10PN
AUNY NN P YIAPNN NTNIRNDN NN NYPAY

DAN-DN ONINNKN VAYNN N2 NPXDIDIN NPONND IWNNY MYPL VY 1DaApNn 2022 NN 91 4,2 ,1 ©Dd1 22.1.4
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212090 Y1N MAPY NI2ND INDINIY NNIINID DOPR DY WP ,NI1AN2 DX TPAN DY)
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WD NIVN RYND IN NVDVN DYDY NPDY IN NVINN DY DIN? XI AN NVAY 71921 ,)°T Y29 5y namnn
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mMHIM 91720 NPY NNSWN P2 NXIAPA MIAN P DXDODN YW NITO NHNNY L2005 12087 29 TINNA 22.4.4
172N NN HY2 YT DY NPIN NN IN NIV XD ,YAPI 571922 DITTRN NMIDYI TIN'N DNIVNY ,DNVIOVI
TMVYND NYNN MOT,NINY NNYRI 21D MDD NDIND ,NPINN YIYAN MY NP 1DIRY WOV TSO Nanwnn
ST NN NPINT YD Y5 ,Y2IP X DIDNN ; INKRN NN DY NI DY NN GIVXNY NN DY M
DOVTN TIY M WIDTID IDIPY T, TPNYI NOMWNN NI2NN T DY NWYNY TIY MM RPN DI Y200 N Tp
DY NIT T, NYPH MOTN DY PYHNY DI NONMIWNN NIINT NI YY1 NIPHI .OMMPINN DNY 295 1IN
N72ND DY NN PIYN TIY 29 DY NIMWYNN NIIN2 NN HY2 DY PRI U NN VIO INRD NMIND
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L9MVNN DIMIN DIDND DN IN NMNN OYYA DIDN 12)0 NN I NI DY YD NOMWNN NN MNN
PIVUN TIVH 80% PNVYY TOA 19970 TN NPIN DY NMIP NNMSOIN WNNT ;N9 1DIRY ,IWN NINN HYa Yo
DRNNAINNN PIVN TN 120% PNYY TO 1900 T 1PNPIN DY N0 NYNNIN WNNY PNHIIND IN NN
INN HOYYI BD50NA FTOINY )INND
NNOVNR/DINIVY NNAVN DY NVIIVN NN POV #MVIDY NPY! DY NIPNRI ,NMND Y3 DODNY DRNNA
PRI DI NN NPT MDD NWN XY 7PN L(JNDY DRN NN IN) DIDND T8 Y MHINNH NN NINYD
NOMWYNN NN YT DY MPINHD NPINND D5 AR vI197Y WX (PUT nm¥9IN) ymwnd namwnn n19ana
91N .DTINN TP DY DIDPY KD NAMWNN N1aNN DY NN Pwn 7YY nnna (CALL noxaw)
WIND NN KD DYTTINM DTN OOIN ;OINON MY PAYN T DY Yap» NMINN DY PV NN ,NNoon
ONYN TAYN T DY YAV PIVN PNND TN DOTTNN TANY NN IN MWD TN M YN NNdond
SY YVNIIN YR TP INON NN PIYN VNN INN ONY TIYN NNND MITN DX TINNN THX DY \N»N
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TN DODNN .971922 NOPN DINNA GMWYNN DI NPINN YY1 DIDNY NITY DNNY,2022 920212 9 DA
S PIPOTI DIPIYY 12 NNNN DY YON GMYNN DIHN DY IMITINNA DIDNDN DINITY PTON
NN D WY MDD NPIN DY 5O RN J9NIYNN ©I0NN NAN TYINKD MOV MIYN DIN2 YO ¥ap) .1
9 DY AWINOY YINDA NN INY GPYE NPAINN NN D TIY 1953 ,MN2KD 1P GMYNn OVNN
A9TIVNN 00N WAP) TWN DIVNI
20 72 MODN MMPNY MUMVLIN YTNN> NI ,2042 120XTA 29 DYDY TY 97IN2 MY 1DTIVHN DI0NN .2
MINTION DY ,NNPN DI DIN 197 DNY WNHN IVN TN WTIN KD NMND DY THN GRY T152) NNNX D MY
9NN B50NN HY YOMVIN WYTND
IN/Y DX2ONNNN DMV 1DTIVHN DO0NL D0 ,(NYD NYN JPINY 293) NN II¥2 DION NN I .3
.DPMNN DYNRY DMYYI

Frito-Lay Dip ) 093 »P>3nx0 11190 I8P D¢ N2 172N DY NaMwN Npoy NHnn 2007 921087 wHina 22.4.5

(S.E USA Inc.myxnna) 71ann mp inn 2008 0012 28 opn oninv 12 ,("nwavn) (Company, Inc.
Sabra Dipping Company ,LLC n1ana »mannwnn Mo’ 50%-1,ANK 95 ,(NY1I10 MYNNNI) 177099)
WYY rMannYnm MM NN N5NY PUT n»¥9IX 17202 7Mannwinn Aot »oyan 1NN Y35 (719297)
YOV 18D .25% MIND 1920 DY PIvin MY DYDY ,NY NNMINA 19202 OINKRD 7MANNYNN NN Yoyad
NAND PPN TPINND Y9N DY 7MANNYNN MM NN YIDTD MDD 7PN NIAND PSNIND NHYN
NIDINA N0 HY PV MNY DDA DY DY MANNYNN NMDTY NN NAND TININD DO 1151Y , PN NN
DD OOYA AN DY MDD NN WOV TND PMANNVYN NN NN I TN PR ,YDIP IPNN .25%
YHYA NN ND MO N TIYN YN XY 1T MY 990 (TAG ALONG) 171919 490802 "mannvinn
DIMDN OXTINN NPNL WM 9012 .(DRAG ALONG) n712915 9708100 D¥INND YMOANNYHIN NI
,S.E USA Inc. Y¥ X nuoIn SY 1Nno0n NX INYV XN DIMON 119202 PMONNYN MDY NYayn YoV

PN Maph oxNNa

YY IN NIANN DY IRDHD MDY NA-NIAN NPND DTN MANNYNT MM PINNN T 71PN 2D ,¥ap) Ty
MPINNDN 20%-1 NYYND YIS NPNI NONANT DI TINNN NDIYI PN TINM 7D IN,PNIYN 29D P09
17202 MANNVYNN NMMDT DI NN ,NVNRI 119, W10 INYI N MWD T8N IR, 1PIYN 29D 1PPD991 IN 172N
.1M20 DY PV MY DDA DY T ININ T MPINND
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Jwno L ("SINO GERMAN") Qingdao HaiShi IoT Technology Co., Ltd. ,mvaown mw> nnpim
SPIND NXAP T MPIMN 7NN 51% -1 SINO GERMAN 5v 1onynn 49%-1 nipdinn 01 DINILVY
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ndependent auditor s report

To the Directors and Shareholders of the Company
Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A.
Eusébio - CE

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Trés Coragdes Alimentos S.A. (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, the consolidated statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by international Accounting Standards Board — IASB.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements included in the Accountant Professional Code of Ethics (“Cédigo de Etica Profissional do Contador”)
and in the professional standards issued by the Brazilian Federal Accounting Council (“Conselho Federal de
Contabilidade”) that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

KPMG Auditores Independentes Ltda., uma sociedade simples brasileira, de KPMG Auditores Independentes Ltda., a Brazilian limited liability company and
responsabilidade limitada e firma-membro da organizacéo global KPMG de a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms
firmas-membro independentes licenciadas da KPMG International Limited, uma affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited

empresa inglesa privada de responsabilidade limitada. by guarantee.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Fortaleza, February 29, 2024

KPMG Auditores Independentes Ltda

CRC SP-014428/0-6 S-CE

]

Pedro Barroso Silva Junior

Accountant CRC CE-021967/0-5



Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Total assets

Assets Note

Current
Cash and cash equivalents 6
Deposits 7
Trade receivables 8
Inventories 9
Recoverable taxes 10
Income tax receivables
Other current assets 11

Non-current
Trade receivables 8
Judicial deposits 23
Loans to related parties 12
Recoverable taxes 10
Other non-current assets 11
Deferred tax assets 24.c
Investments 13
Fixed assets 14
Intangible assets 15
Right-of-use assets 16

December 31,

December 31,

2023 2022
870,986 1,037,736
10,788 15,148
734,278 765,622
1,199,532 1,076,052
75,169 133,004
19,582 25,371
28,260 23,791
2,938,595 3,076,724
7,464 9,482
9,260 8,988
- 14,389
192,823 124,306
74,159 68,551
75,091 17,842
105,562 85,072
748,005 681,623
462,052 416,459
87,322 95,845
1,761,738 1,522,557
4,700,333 4,599,281

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Liabilities and equity

Current
Short term loans
Trade payables
Short term lease liabilities
Income tax payables
Employees and other payroll related liabilities
Proposed dividends
Interest on equity payable
Payable taxes
Other current liabilities

Non-current
Long term loans
Long term lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for legal proceedings
Interest on equity payable

Equity
Share capital
Translation reserve
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

17
18
16

19
25.c
20
21

17
16
22
24.c
23
20

25.a

3coragOes

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
889,694 1,037,201
956,301 891,886
42,888 36,934
616 4,987
88,970 100,453
138,190 82,484

- 79,689
33,298 22,405
33,024 38,375
2,182,981 2,294,414
461,864 424,600
59,868 71,626
20,368 19,497
2,947 6,342
71,374 70,152
33,855 33,855
650,276 626,072
276,464 275,531
(195,776) (200,891)
1,786,237 1,603,919
1,866,925 1,678,559
151 236
1,867,076 1,678,795
4,700,333 4,599,281




Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses

General and administrative expenses

Allowance for expected credit losses

Equity method

Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit

Financial income
Financial expenses
Net financial expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax (expense)
Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total profit for the year

December 31,

3

3coracoes

December 31,

Note 2023 2022
26 7,896,711 8,169,768
27 (6,176,645) (6,287,861)
1,720,066 1,881,907
28 (1,218,877) (1,099,641)
29 (196,996) (207,351)
8 (10,864) (17,789)
13 20,490 10,414
1,571 (1,902)

315,390 565,638

93,582 45,841
(186,414) (113,741)
30 (92,832) (67,900)
222,558 497,738
24.a 98,786 (45,121)
321,344 452,617

321,441 452,761
(97) (144)

321,344 452,617

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Profit attributable to:

Other comprehensive income (loss) items that are or may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences
Comprehensive income for the year

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

December 31,

3

3coracoes

December 31,

Note 2023 2022
321,344 452,617

25.b 5,115 287
326,459 452,904

326,556 453,048

97) (144)

326,459 452,904




Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

{In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Balance as of 31 December, 2021
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences
Total other comprehensive gain (loss):

Internal equity changes

State VAT and Federal tax incentives
Change in interest in investments valued by the equity method

Profit destination
Interest on equity credited
Dividends proposed
Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December, 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation differences
Total other comprehensive gain (loss):

Internal equity changes

Capitalization of tax incentives

Non-recipracal capital contributions to subsidiary
State VAT and Federal tax incentives

Reserves reclassification

Legal reserve

Profit destination

Dividends proposed
Reserve for profit to be distributed

Balance as of 31 December, 2023

Note

26.b

26.e
14

26.c
26.c
26.d

26.b

26.e

26.c
26.d

3coragOes
Retained earnings
Share Legal Tax Profit to Translation Accumulated Non- controlling Total
capital reserve incentives distribute reserve profit Total interests Equity
275,531 55,106 512,623 801,089 (201,178) - 1,443,171 735 1,443,906
452,761 452,761 (144) 452,617
287 - 287 - 287
287 452,761 453,048 (144) 452,904
147,264 (147,264)
(2,448) (2,448) (355) (2,803)
(122,750) (122,750) (122,750)
- (92,462) (92,462) (92,462)
- 90,285 (90,285) - - -
147,264 87,837 (452,761) (217,660) (355) (218,015)
275,531 55,106 659,887 888,926 (200,891) - 1,678,559 236 1,678,795
321,441 321,441 97) 321,344
5,115 - 5,115 - 5,115
5,115 321,441 326,556 (97) 326,459
933 (933)
- - 12 12
134,943 - (134,943)
- 317 (317) -
187 - - (187)
- (138,190) (138,190) (138,190)
- - - 48,121 (48,121) - - -
933 187 134,327 47,804 (321,441) (138,190) 12 (138,178)
276,464 55,293 794,214 936,730 (195,776) - 1,866,925 151 1,867,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(In thousand of Brazilian Reais)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization
Termination of lease contracts
Provision for legal proceedings
Allowance for expected credit losses
Other income, net
Equity method
Finance expenses, net
Income tax (expense)

Change in:
Trade receivables
Inventories
Recoverable and payable taxes, net
Judicial deposits
Trade payables
Employees and other payroll related liabilities

Other current and non-current assets and liabilities

Change in operating activities

Interest paid
Interest received
Income tax paid
Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Change in deposits
Payment for acquisition of operations, net of cash
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets
Acquisition of fixed assets
Investments in intangible assets
Dividend received
Long term loans to related parties
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans
Repayment of loans
Payment of lease liabilities
Interest on equity paid
Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in (provided by) financing activities

Net decrease (increase) in cash and cash equivalents

Net decrease (increase) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

3

3coracoes

December 31,

Note 2023 2022
321,344 452,617

124,267 124,201
(66) (2,330)

1,222 4,449

10,864 17,789

(1,571) 1,902
(20,490) (10,414)

92,832 67,900

(98,786) 45,121
20,882 (290,783)
(126,353) (111,596)
49,770 (16,833)
(272) (909)

65,170 193,590

(11,483) 24,208
(15,090) (13,251)

412,240 485,661
(161,708) (62,906)

73,391 36,712
(3,673) (7,415)

320,250 452,052

3,740 9,888
- (400)

5,244 4,179
14.b (160,072) (133,955)
(59,220) (28,245)

- 15

17.d 15,665 6
(194,643) (148,512)

17.d 942,690 796,240
17.d (1,041,740) (463,400)
17.d (31,134) (26,476)
17.d (79,689) (52,078)
17.d (82,484) (62,770)
(292,357) 191,516

(166,750) 495,056

1,037,736 542,680

870,986 1,037,736

(166,750) 495,056




Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. @

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

General information

Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
an industrial and commercial Group, which operate in Brazil, in producing and selling branded
coffee products, multi-beverage single portion capsules and machines, powdered juices,
chocolate drinks and corn meal products. The Group is also active in green coffee exports,
lending Away-From-Home machines, operation of coffee shops, industrialization and sales of
plant-based beverages, especially nuts milk and isotonic ones, cashew butter, roasting and
selling specialty coffees in e-commerce and to third party businesses and investing in other
companies.

The Company is located at Rua Santa Clara, 100, Parque Santa Clara, Eusébio, Ceara, Brazil.
The Company controls the entities Cafeterias Trés Coracoes Ltda., Prumo Participacoes Ltda.,
which in turns controls the entity Rituais Café S.A. and also controls Café Trés Coracdes S.A.,
which controls the entity Principal Comércio e IndUstria de Café Ltda and Café Brasileiro
Alimentos Ltda. The Company also participates in joint-venture agreements, sharing the control
with third parties of the companies 3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. (“3Caffi”) and
Positive Company IndUstria e Comércio Ltda. (“Positive Company”), with 50% of shares in each
company, which are not consolidated in this report, but evaluated by the equity method.

The Group is currently the largest group in roasted and ground coffee business in Brazil
according to Nielsen Flash Report, and owns the coffee and other food brands of Santa Clara,
Kimimo, Trés Coracdes, Pimpinela, Principal, Fino Grao, Café Doutor, Café Opcao, Café
Divinopolis, Café Geronymo, Estrada Real, Café Leticia, Itamaraty, Londrina, Chocolatto,
Claralate, Dona Clara, Claramil, Frisco, Tornado, Tres, Iguacu, Cruzeiro, Amigo, Cirol, Cirol
Real, Realmil, Toko, Apollo, Astoria, Manaus, Tapajos, Betania, Tribo do Café, Bar Barista, Café
do Moco, A Tal da Castanha, Jungle and Café Brasileiro, Café 3 Fazendas, Café Bandeira, Café
Premiado, .br, .br Gold and Coolate.

The Group’s industrial facilities are located in the states of Ceara, Rio Grande do Norte, Minas
Gerais, Rio de Janeiro, Amazonas, Sao Paulo and Mato Grosso. Distribution centers are located in
almost all states of Brazil. In addition, the Group owns green coffee processing plants in the
state of Minas Gerais. Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from one of its related
parties, Trés Coracoes Imoveis Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda., which is not consolidated in
these financial statements, since it is not part of the Group structure presented below. Trés
Coracoes Imoveis Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda. is owned by Sao Miguel Holding e
Investimentos S.A. (50%) and Strauss Coffee B.V. (50%). The Group also owns coffee shops that
are located in the cities of Fortaleza, Natal and Curitiba. Positive Company’s physical structure
is located in the state of Espirito Santo.
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Trés Coragoes Alimentos S.A.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

3

(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had the following structure:
Strauss Coffee 580 Miguel
B.W Fundo
sox | sox
Trés Coracoes
Alimentos 5.4
99.9% 100% 100% 50% 0%

L] T ¥ L] ¥

f e ) . P ICaffi Indistria Positive Company
c CafE“TrESs A Eafet?ﬂasl_;l'l;es Prumo F;_atrl;lt;mpau;ﬂes & Comércio de Indistria e Comércio
Oragoes > aragoes Lida. ' Capsulas 5.A Ltda.
100% 100% 88.36%
k4 h i
Principal Ind. E Café Brasileiro Rituais Café
Com. Ltda. Alimentos Ltda. 5.4,

2 Basis of preparation

(@) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

These consolidated financial statements were approved by management for issuance on
February 29, 2024.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies, including changes thereto, are included in Note 3 and
Note 4.

(b) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost, except
where stated otherwise. For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and
liabilities see Note 4.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Brazilian Real (RS).

For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements are measured using that functional currency. All Group entities have the
same functional currency, except for the export business of green coffee, for which the
functional currency is the United States Dollar (Note 25.b).
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Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. @

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

(d) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 4(a) - Consolidation: whether the Group has significant influence and control over an
investee;

Note 13 - Equity-accounted investees: whether the Group has significant influence and control
over an investee or joint ventures;

Note 16 - Lease term: whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension options;
and

Note 18 - Reverse factoring: presentation of amounts related to supply chain financing
arrangements in the statement of financial position.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at December 31, 2023 that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes:

Note 8 - Measurement of ECL (Expected Credit Loss) allowance for trade receivables: key
assumptions in determining the weighted-average loss rate;

Note 14 - Useful life of fixed asset items;

Note 15 - Impairment test of intangible assets and goodwill: key assumptions underlying
recoverable amounts, including the recoverability of development costs;

Note 23 - Recognition and measurement of provisions for legal proceedings: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 24 (c) - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against
which tax loss carryforwards can be used and uncertain tax treatments;

Note 24 (d) - Uncertainty over income tax treatment; and

Note 31 - Financial instrument fair value measurements.

12
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(@)

(i)

Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. (B

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

Fair value measurement
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

When necessary, management reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of the Standards, including
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data
as much as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs). As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group had no assets or liabilities
classified at Level 3.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Changes in significant accounting policies
New standards are effective from January 1, 2023 but they do not have a material effect on the
Group’s financial statements. See the list of new standards in Note 5.

Material accounting policies
The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, except if otherwise mentioned.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group ‘controls’ an entity when it is

13
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Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. (B

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (NCl)
NCI are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

Interests in equity-accounted investees

The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees include interests in a joint venture. A joint
venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to
the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially
recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (OCl) of equity- accounted investees, until the date on which joint
control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated
against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealized losses
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Group companies at the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange rate differences arising upon the settlement of monetary items or upon reporting
monetary items at exchange rates different from that by which they were initially recorded
during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are charged to financing
expenses.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

14
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Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. @

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities derived from foreign operations are translated to Brazilian real using
the exchange rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to Brazilian reals using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in
the foreign currency translation reserve (translation reserve) in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, so that control, significant influence or joint control is
lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, while retaining control,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the Group disposes only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as amortized cost or fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, and
which are initially measured at the transaction price, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, at transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at the instrument level.

For the purposes of SPPI assessment, ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows and as such
it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
Prepayment and extension features; and

Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the SPPI criteria if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include
reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost;

Financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are

met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to collect contractual cash
flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents (except for
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracoes

Deposits in banks), trade receivables with third parties, trade receivables with related parties,
loans to related parties and others.

Financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss include Deposits in banks,
Deposits with brokers and Derivatives.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, when
applicable, is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL, as appropriate.

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, recognized in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, loans and borrowings, distributions to
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shareholders (dividends and interest on equity), payables for acquisition, lease liabilities and
others.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group routinely uses derivative financial instruments in order to hedge against risks relating
to prices of commodities and against foreign currency risks, arising from its operating, financing
and investing activities. The derivative financial instruments are comprised mainly of forward
transactions and when applicable, options on currencies and of forward transactions and options
on commodities.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments. Most of the currency hedge
operations is currently related to importation of multi-beverage single portion machines.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and of the hedging instrument are expected to offset
each other.

Fair value hedges
A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is accounted as a fair value hedge.

When a hedged item in a fair value hedge is a firm commitment to acquire an asset or assume a
liability, the initial carrying amount of the asset or the liability that results from the entity
meeting the firm commitment is adjusted to include the cumulative change in the fair value of
the hedged item that was recognized in the statement of financial position.

When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognized as an asset or liability, with a corresponding gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

If the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to finish the sale.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labor, other
direct cost and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Inventory
includes certain spare parts and maintenance equipment, which will be used in up to one year.

Provision for slow-moving or obsolete inventory is recorded when deemed necessary by
management.

Fixed assets

Recognition and measurement
Fixed assets are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation (see below) and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, an estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located
(when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or to restore the site).

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of that equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are determined by comparing the net proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized net of each other within
“other income” or “other expenses”, if relevant, in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditures
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Leasehold improvements

The construction costs on leased property, which will be transferred to the lessor’s ownership at
the end of the rental period, are amortized over the expected rental period on a straight-line
basis.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The annual average rates for the principal depreciation groups, for current and comparative
period, are as follows:
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2023 2022
Buildings 3.04 2.01
Machinery and equipment 7.05 6.07
Vehicles - Airplane 5.00 5.00
Vehicles - Others (a) 10.55 20.31
Furniture and other equipment 12.10 10.61
Leasehold improvements 2.32 2.02

During 2023, Management carried out an analysis and updated the useful life and residual value of its trucks. The
updated impact is a decrease of RS 9,721 in the depreciation of the year. The analysis and conclusion came mainly
from the increase in the usage time of these trucks within the Company (positively impacting the useful life) and the
increase in the price of used vehicles in the national market (positively impacting the residual value).

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed on every reporting date
and the rates used for tax purposes may differ from the above rates.

Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodawill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, and is presented as part of intangible assets. In
subsequent periods, goodwill is measured at cost, less accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets

The intangible assets include brands, trademarks, software, distribution networks, client
portfolio, license agreements, and non-competition agreements, that were acquired as part of
business combination.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditures
on internally generated intangibles, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Goodwill and some brands are not amortized. For tax purposes,
Goodwill may be amortized, according to Brazilian tax legislation.

The annual average rate for the principal amortization groups, for current and comparative
period are as follows (2023 and 2022):

2023 2022
Computer software 23.20 30.68
Brands and trademarks 13.36 20.77
List of customers (presented as “others” in Note 15) 9.49 10.00
Other 20.01 23.75
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In case of changes in the useful lives as a result of its reassessment, the new useful life is
applied prospectively.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

Timing of impairment testing

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred
tax assets - see Notes 4.d and 4.k, respectively) are examined on each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets, including intangible assets, that have
indefinite useful lives, the Group estimates the recoverable amounts at least once a year. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or of its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income in accordance with the nature of
the item that has been impaired. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating
units (CGU) are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.
Goodwill impairment losses are classified as other expenses in the statement of income.

Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its net selling price (fair value less costs to sell). In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present values using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Reversal of impairment

Impairment losses recognized in previous periods are reexamined every reporting period in order
to determine whether there are any indications that the losses have decreased or no longer
exist. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, but only if the carrying amount after the reversal of the
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation or amortization, that
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of
impairment losses are included in the statement of income. Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill are not reversed.

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for financial assets
measured at amortized cost. ECL is the probable weighted estimate of credit losses. The Group
measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
(lifetime ECLs).
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For trade receivables the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,

the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is

based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 120 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Group expects no significant recovery from the amounts written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures and with the tax legal requirements for recovery of amounts due.

(h) Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money. The Group normally considers the present value of the
liability, to be equivalent to the future value, as the differences are not material.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, disclosure is provided of a contingent liability, except when the
possibility of the outflow of economic benefits is considered remote.

(i) Government grants
Government grants are recorded in profit or loss when there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received or compensated and the conditions established for the grant will be
achieved by the Group. Afterwards, the grant is recognized in the statement of income.

The types of government grants received by the Group and their respective tax treatment are
described in Note 25.e.

(j) Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the control of the goods is transferred to the customer, at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods.

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

The Group considers whether there are other provisions in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of
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variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.
Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with a right of discounts and volume
rebates. The rights of discounts and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration. The
Group provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset
against amounts payable by the customer.

Warranty obligations

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of
sale, as required by law (Note 23). These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under IAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses comprise current and deferred tax. Income tax expenses are recognized in
the statement of income, unless they relate to a transaction or event recognized directly in
equity.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related to income tax, including uncertain
tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them
under IAS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax

Current tax (in Brazil: “IRPJ” and “CSLL”) comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and, when applicable, any adjustment to tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, considering also the effect of government grants as described in notes
24.c and 25.e.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxes are recognized in relation to temporary differences between accounting balances
of assets and liabilities and the corresponding balance amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred
income tax is not recognized for:

Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss carryforwards, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be generated in
the future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date, and is subject, as always, to uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets in annual average rates, as follows
(2023 and 2022):

2023 2022
Buildings 13.53 12.99
Machinery and equipment 21.82 21.82
Vehicles 59.43 59.50

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment test.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate since the implicit
interest rate is not readily available.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from external

financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of
the asset leased.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or
termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Group recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Standards issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2024 and
earlier application is permitted. However, the Group has not early adopted the following new or
amended accounting standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

The amendments, as issued in 2020 and 2022, aim to clarify the requirements on determining
whether a liability is current or non-current, and require new disclosures for non-current
liabilities that are subject to future covenants. The amendments apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The Group is in process of assessing the potential impact of the amendments on the
classification of these liabilities and the related disclosures.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

The amendments introduce new disclosures relating to supplier finance arrangements that assist
users of the financial statements to assess the effects of these arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities and cash flows and on an entity’s exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments apply for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

As disclosed in Note 18, the Group participates in a supply chain financing arrangement for
which the new disclosures will apply. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
amendments, particularly with respect to the collection of additional information needed to
meet the new disclosure requirements.

Other standards
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)
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Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21)

6 Cash and cash equivalents

RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Bank balances 98,531 51,817
Cash 146 201
Short term deposits:
Deposits in banks (a) 772,309 985,718
870,986 1,037,736

Refers to short-term deposits, with high liquidity, classified as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These deposits
refer substantially to Bank Deposit Certificate - "CDB", with interest calculated over resources kept in bank account
for short periods, normally up to 30 days, with interest currently of 101.66% of the Brazilian Interbank Deposit rate -
CDI (in 2022, 102.33% of CDI).

Deposits
R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Deposits with brokers 10,788 15,148
10,788 15,148

Refers to deposits made to brokers to use in future operations, classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss, with brokers responsible for derivative financial instrument operations, especially green coffee sell
and buy options.

Trade receivables

RS

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Third parties 831,475 859,364
Foreign customers 17,611 13,457
Related parties (Note 12) 21,218 11,932
870,304 884,753

Less:
Provision for discounts (a) (105,486) (87,632)
Subtotal 764,818 797,121
Allowance for expected credit losses (b) (23,076) (22,017)
741,742 775,104
Current assets 734,278 765,622
Non-current assets 7,464 9,482
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Provision calculated based on an assessment of the risk per customer cluster, as detailed in Note 31.b. Please, see

below the aging list.

Days 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Not past due 637,198 685,285
Past due 1 to 30 91,155 81,573
Past due 31 to 60 1,280 6,474
Past due 61 to 90 - 2,973
Past due 91 to 120 2,210 1,520
More than 120 32,975 19,296
Subtotal 764,818 797,121
Allowance for expected credit losses (23,076) (22,017)

741,742 775,104

The movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables during the period

was:

2023 2022
Balance at 1 January (22,017) (6,021)
Provision for expected credit losses (10,864) (17,789)
Write-offs 9,805 1,793
Balance at December 31, (23,076) (22,017)

Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated, and there is a low level of concentration with the biggest customers. The largest
customer represents 7.23% of 2023 revenue (7.79% in 2022). Further information about the credit

risk exposures is disclosed in Note 31.b.
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Inventories
R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Finished goods including green coffee 760,489 750,581

Work in progress (a) 63,312 61,685

Raw material 206,971 117,139

Packaging and other materials 141,505 113,121

Import in progress 14,541 13,349

Advances to suppliers 12,714 20,177

1,199,532 1,076,052

Inventory balances are presented net of provision for obsolescence and write-offs for reduction
to net realizable value. In 2023 the write-down of inventory to net realizable value amounted
was RS 2,045 (2022: RS 1,631), recorded in the statements of income, as cost of sales. Inventory
includes spare parts and maintenance equipment which will be used up within one year.

(@) Some kinds of raw materials (mainly some raw coffee beans) are sent for processing in other
companies, until 2022 they were classified as raw materials. However, in 2023 the Management
reviewed the classification and concluded that the best way to present them is in the sub-group
of work in progress, since the Company is waiting the return of them as other work in process
items or as a finished good. Therefore, we reclassified the 2022 balance between raw materials
and work in progress products for better comparability and analysis in RS 61,033.

Recoverable taxes
R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
State VAT - ICMS (a) 65,795 71,301
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS (b) 113,464 155,335
Income taxes - IRPJ and CSLL (c) 65,059 22,281
Other 23,674 8,393
267,992 257,310
Current assets 75,169 133,004
Non-current assets 192,823 124,306

(a) State VAT - ICMS
State VAT recoverable is mainly due to credits for purchases of inputs and raw materials and operations where
advanced VAT was paid at the moment of the out-of-state goods entering the respective state. However, for those
cases where the presumed operation has not taken place due to goods subsequent movement to another state, the
Company is entitled to a reimbursement of the VAT paid in advance to the state government (mainly Minas Gerais and
Sao Paulo).

Part of state VAT credits was recorded in non-current assets, since management understands that it will not be
available for use in less than a year because the authorities usually take a long time to process these credits. As of
December 31, 2023, the state VAT non-current balances were RS 42,253 (RS 39,716 as of December 31, 2022).

(b) Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS
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Federal VAT recoverable amounts are due to credits on purchases of packaging materials and freight services linked to
local market sales with zero tax rate, as well as presumed credit on green coffee export revenue.

Part of the total amount is related to non-inclusion of state VAT (ICMS) in the basis of calculation of federal VAT (PIS
and COFINS. As of December 31,2023 the amount was RS 102,138 (RS 122,351 as of December 31, 2022).

Income taxes - IRPJ and CSLL

The main variation in the period is related to the update of the impact on Income taxes resulting from the calculation
of the exclusion of State VAT (ICMS) in the basis of Federal VAT (PIS and COFINS) calculation base in amount of RS
29,384 in November, 2023.

Other current and non-current assets

R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Advances to suppliers 6,460 880
Advances to employees 6,435 4,080
Prepaid expenses (a) 26,000 28,179
Special bank deposit for reinvestment 7,493 7,042
Indemnification assets (b) 50,347 47,716
Sundry 5,684 4,445
102,419 92,342

Current assets 28,260 23,791
Non-current assets 74,159 68,551

Prepaid expenses are mainly represented by advance payments for marketing campaigns, software maintenance and
Away From Home expenses.

Indemnification assets recognized as a result of the obligation of former owners of Café Brasileiro to reimburse any
contingent amounts that may materialize unfavorably after the business combination.

Related parties

The Group’s related parties are the parent entities with 50% shareholding each, related parties
of the parent entities, investee entities of both the Group and the parent entities and members
of the Board, senior management and their close family members, of both the Group and the
parent entities.

The prices and credit terms in respect of transactions with related parties are determined
according to customary commercial terms and for the transactions with 3Caffi according to
master supply agreement and Positive Company according to the products purchase and sale
contract.

R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Current assets
Trade receivables (Note 8)
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. 20,433 11,900
Positive Company Industria e Comércio de Alimentos Saudaveis S.A 778 32
Fazenda Sequoia Minas Ltda. 7 -

21,218 11,932

Non-current assets
Loans to related parties
3Caffi IndUstria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. - 14,389
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Current liabilities

Trade payables (Note 18)

3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A.

Positive Company Industria e Comércio de Alimentos Saudaveis S.A
Trés Coracoes Imoveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda.

Proposed dividends (Note 25.c)
Strauss Coffee B.V.

Sao Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participacdes

Interest on equity payable - long and short term (Note 20)
Strauss Coffee B.V. (net of tax withheld)

Sao Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participacoes

Statement of income

Revenue

3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A.

Positive Company Industria e Comércio de Alimentos Saudaveis S.A
Fazenda Sequoia Minas Ltda.

Cost of sales

3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A.

Positive Company Industria e Comércio de Alimentos Saudaveis S.A
Fazenda Sequoia Minas Ltda.

Sales and general and administrative expenses
Trés Coracoes Imoveis Arm. Gerais e Serv. Ltda.

Trade receivables, trade payables, cost of sales and sales

3
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RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
- 14,389
32,183 19,675
12,030 2,074
3,559 3,357
47,772 25,106
69,095 41,242
69,095 41,242
138,190 82,484
15,555 52,169
18,300 61,375
33,855 113,544
219,687 221,134
69,496 64,663
894 91
7 43
70,397 64,797
238,513 204,242
76,591 57,319
- 74
315,104 261,635
13,656 12,935
13,656 12,935

Trade receivables, trade payables, cost of sales and sales balances with related parties are due to operations of
purchase and sale of goods and services. Part of the facilities used by the Group is leased from Trés Coracoes Imoveis

Armazéns Gerais e Servicos Ltda.

Loans to related party

In 2023, the loan to 3Caffi, for the construction of the capsule factory, was completely received.

Investments

Interest in joint ventures
3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas Ltda. (a)

Positive Company Industria e Comércio de Alimentos Saudaveis S.A (b)
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105,562 85,072

3Caffi Industria e Comércio de Capsulas S.A. (“3Caffi”) is an equity-accounted investee held jointly by the Group and
the Italian Caffitaly System S.p.A., which share the Company control in the joint-venture, with 50% share participation
each. Most of the Group's capsule production is concentrated in 3Caffi. Accordingly, the Group has classified its
interest in 3Caffi as a joint venture.

Positive Company Industria e Comércio Ltda. (“Positive Company”), is a non-listed company based in Fortaleza-CE,
with manufacturing unit in Espirito Santo, that operates in industrialization and sales of plant-based beverages,
especially nuts milk and isotonic ones and cashew butter. According to the agreement, the Company has 50% of voting
rights. Accordingly, the Group has classified its interest in Positive Company as a joint venture.

Below is the movement of the year:

RS

2023 2022
Balance at 1 January 85,072 77,122
Group's share of profit (loss) of equity accounted investees 20,490 10,414
Dividends received - (15)
Change in relative participation in investments - (2,448)
Others - (1)
Balance at December 31, 105,562 85,072

The following table summarizes the financial information of the joint ventures as included in
their own financial statements, including fair value adjustments at acquisition. The table also
reconciles the summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the joint ventures.
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3Caffi Positive
31/12/2023  31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Assets
Current 150,576 111,343 29,741 24,563
Non-current 138,324 115,200 13,901 8,067
288,900 226,543 43,642 32,630
Liabilities
Current 80,549 50,602 17,584 9,454
Non-current 84,566 89,746 1,006 1,514
Equity 123,785 86,195 25,052 21,662
288,900 226,543 43,642 32,630
Statement of income
Revenue 240,072 205,559 86,722 65,683
(-) Cost of sales (193,820) (167,578) (66,961) (51,070)
(=) Gross profit 46,252 37,981 19,761 14,613
Other expenses, net (2,919) (5,871) (19,238) (22,051)
(=) Profit before income tax 43,333 32,110 523 (7,438)
(-) Income tax (expenses) (5,743) (6,097) 2,865 2,251
(=) Profit (loss) for the year 37,590 26,013 3,388 (5,187)

The Company granted endorsements in favor of the joint ventures, with balances on December

31, 2023 and 2022 listed below:

Type of endorsement
Legal entity endorsement

Total

32

R$
3Caffi
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
71,918 74,783
71,918 74,783
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14 Fixed assets

(a) Fixed asset movements

RS

Land and Machinery and Furniture and Leasehold

Buildings Equipment Vehicles other equipment improvements Total
Cost
Balances as of December 31, 2021 131,891 413,245 108,731 244,753 130,272 1,028,892
Additions 4,138 42,401 34,483 42,924 9,191 133,137
Disposals (295) (2,211) (739) (6,992) (61) (10,298)
Transfer between classes of assets (a) (1,242) 196 2 743 1,174 873
Effect of changes in exchange rates (23,494) 392 1 (115) (896) (24,112)
Balances as of December 31, 2022 110,998 454,023 142,478 281,313 139,680 1,128,492
Additions 7,331 58,758 3,697 65,008 12,740 147,534
Disposals 9) (4,080) (1,670) (3,253) (88) (9,100)
Transfer between classes of assets (a) (3,863) 703 (252) 451 3,819 858
Effect of changes in exchange rates (38) (594) (5) (301) (131) (1,069)
Balances as of December 31, 2023 114,419 508,810 144,248 343,218 156,020 1,266,715
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Accumulated depreciation
Balances as of December 31, 2021

Additions

Disposals

Transfer between classes of assets (a)
Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balances as of December 31, 2022

Additions

Disposals

Transfer between classes of assets (a)
Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balances as of December 31, 2023

Balance net as of
December 31, 2022
December 31, 2023

3

3coracoes
RS

Land and Machinery and Furniture and Leasehold
Buildings Equipment Vehicles other equipment improvements Total
(20,218) (175,206) (57,600) (106,036) (18,522) (377,582)
(3,175) (26,687) (14,516) (32,260) (5,213) (81,851)
80 1,290 583 4,041 62 6,056
(126) 136 (1) (15) (10) (16)
5,939 311 (1) 55 220 6,524
(17,500) (200,156) (71,535) (134,215) (23,463) (446,869)
(3,039) (28,458) (5,074) (35,703) (5,202) (77,476)
10 2,321 1,299 1,795 2 5,427
(345) 38 - - 307 0
(735) 552 4 111 276 208
(21,609) (225,703) (75,306) (168,012) (28,080) (518,710)
93,498 253,867 70,943 147,098 116,217 681,623
92,810 283,107 68,942 175,206 127,940 748,005

In the year ended December 31, 2023, the amount of R$ 858 (RS 857 as of December 31, 2022), regarding coffee machines lent to customers, was transferred from

inventories to fixed assets.
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(b) Reconciliation between fixed assets movement and cash flows from investing

activities

Fixed assets additions
(-) Loans for acquisition of machines and vehicles - Additions

(+) Loans for acquisition of machines and vehicles - Amortization

( - ) Payable for acquisition of fixed assets of the year (Note 22)
( + ) Payable for acquisition of fixed assets of prior year (Note 22)

Acquisition of fixed assets in investing activities

RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(147,534) (133,137)
67 11,895
(13,150) (14,034)
(2,639) (3,184)
3,184 4,505
(160,072) (133,955)

The cost of significant machine overhauls, which prolongs the useful life of the machine, is

capitalized.

Leasehold improvements to leased premises are depreciated over the shorter of the expected

lease period or the estimated useful life of the asset.

In 2023 and 2022, the Group did not recognize any impairment loss from the fixed assets, since

no impairment trigger has been identified.

Intangible assets
RS

Brands and Computer

trademarks software Goodwill Others Total
Cost
Balances as of December 31, 2021 93,462 64,382 231,426 92,064 481,334
Additions 38 25,690 4,051 29,779
Disposals (365) - (147) (512)
Transfer between classes of assets 8,069 697 (8,766) -
Balances as of December 31, 2022 93,500 97,776 232,123 87,202 510,601
Additions 48 54,361 4,056 58,465
Balances as of December 31, 2023 93,548 152,137 232,123 91,258 569,066
Accumulated amortization
Balances as of December 31, 2021 (4,550) (39,154) (35,652) (79,356)
Additions (21) (5,008) (9,794) (14,823)
Disposals - 32 5 37
Transfer between classes of assets - (6,682) 6,682 -
Balances as of December 31, 2022 (4,571) (50,812) (38,759) (94,142)
Additions (20) (2,919) (9,933) (12,872)
Balances as of December 31, 2023 (4,591) (53,731) (48,692) (107,014)
Balance net as of
December 31, 2022 88,929 46,964 232,123 48,443 416,459
December 31, 2023 88,957 98,406 232,123 42,566 462,052
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Only brands and trademarks acquired as a result of 3Coracdes Sul (incorporated by the
controlled company Café Trés Coracdes S.A.) acquisition have definite useful life.

Others refer mainly to, new product development RS 14,497 (2022: RS 14,208) and client
portfolio RS 28,263 (2022: RS 34,429).

Additions to computer software refer to software acquired by the Company for use in automated
process and software licenses acquired, in 2023 and 2022, mainly SAP licenses and software
development.

(a) Impairment assessment
As of December 31, 2023, intangible assets include an amount of RS 321,080 that is attributable
to brands (except for those acquired in 3Coracdes Sul business combination) and goodwill,
having an indefinite useful life (RS 322,515 as of December 31, 2022).

These assets were assessed as having an indefinite useful life since according to an analysis of
the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limitation of the period they are expected to
generate positive cash flows for the Group.

The relevant factors that were analyzed included, inter alia, the length of time the brand or
trademark is anticipated to be used; the existence of legal or contractual restrictions on their
use; a review of the typical life cycle of similar branded products; existence of indicators of
changes in lifestyle, competitive environment, market requirements and industry trends, sales
history of products of the same brand and the awareness of the market of the brand name or
trademark.

Impairment loss

The Company tests annually, on December 31, the recoverable amounts of goodwill and brands
from business combination transactions. Fixed assets and definite life intangible assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be fully or partially recoverable.

Management analyzes the business and makes decisions based on two different cash generating
units: green coffee and internal market. All goodwill is allocated to the internal market, as
there were no acquisitions associated with the green coffee business. The recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units are based on the calculation of their value in use. These
calculations use cash flow projections that are based on the most current five-year strategic
operating plans (SOP) of the relevant unit.

The cash flows for remaining periods are calculated using the relevant growth rate, which takes
into account the anticipated growth rates of the category, industry, country and population. The
estimated long-term growth rate was 3.0% in 2023 and 2022. The projected cash flows were
discounted according to pre-tax discount rates of 14.51% in 2023 and of 13.12% in 2022. Both
2023 and 2022 projected cash flows were prepared in Brazilian Real currency, without inflation
effects.

The Group performed a sensitivity analysis over the discount rate and the growth rate.

Considering an increase in the discount rate of 1.20% and a reduction in the growth rate of 1%,
Management concluded that there is no need to recognize goodwill impairment. The estimated
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units exceeded its carrying amount by RS 2,396,023
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(2022: RS 5,093,962). In 2023 and 2022, the Group did not recognize any impairment loss from
the operation.

Leases

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, distribution centers, machinery,
vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Leases of plant and distribution centers
generally have lease terms between 2 and 15 years, while vehicles and other equipment
generally have lease terms between 2 and 6 years. Lease payments are renegotiated periodically
to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on
changes in local price indices.

The plants and distribution centers leases were entered into years ago as combined leases of
land and buildings.

The Group also has certain leases of IT equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less and
leases of office equipment of low value. The Group has elected not to recognize right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of recognized right-of-use assets and the movements
during the period:

RS
Machinery and

Buildings equipment Vehicles Total

As at December 31, 2021 79,291 - 5,107 84,398
Additions 33,878 1,706 5,505 41,089
Terminations (1,384) - (731) (2,115)
Depreciation expense (24,039) (93) (3,395) (27,527)
As at December 31, 2022 87,746 1,613 6,486 95,845
Additions 18,436 - 7,581 26,017
Terminations (266) - (355) (621)
Depreciation expense (27,757) (372) (5,790) (33,919)
As at December 31, 2023 78,159 1,241 7,922 87,322
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

As at January 01

Additions

Terminations

Interest expense

Payments (principal and interest)
As at December 31,

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease liabilities:

One to two years
Two to three years
Three to four years
Four to five years

More than five years

RS
2023 2022
108,560 96,277
26,017 41,089
(687) (2,330)
11,414 7,110
(42,548)  (33,586)
102,756 _ 108,560
42,888 36,934
59,868 71,626

RS

31/12/2023  31/12/2022
46,684 64,315
36,032 18,013
11,767 17,177
2,539 4,140
5,734 4,915
102,756 108,560

The amount recognized in the statement of income relating to short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets during the period was RS 21,616 (RS 17,462 in 2022). The Group had total cash

outflows for leases of RS 42,548 in 2023 (RS 33,586 in 2022).

Extension options

Some leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group up to one year before the end of
the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension

options in new leases to provide operational flexibility.

The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group

assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is
a significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.
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17 Short and long term loans

(a) Loans schedule

Brazilian reais loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of machines and vehicles
Working capital loans

Loans for acquisition of green coffee

United States dollar loans and borrowings
Loans for acquisition of inventories (ACC)

Total

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Annual interest rate - %

31/12/2023

8.83
12.28
9.25

6.27

31/12/2022

12.57
13.25
8.21

3.21

3

3coracoes
Index RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
TJLP 258,500 274,375
I 828,330 918,958
R 87,412 88,870
1,174,242 1,282,203
177,316 179,598
177,316 179,598
1,351,558 1,461,801
889,694 1,037,201
461,864 424,600

There are no debt covenants on the Group’s loans and borrowing contracts with the banks.

(b) Non-current payment schedule

13 to 24 months
25 to 36 months
37 to 48 months

49 to 60 months

(c) Guarantees

The following liens have been provided as security for the liabilities of the Group:

Pledges registered in favor of the banks

39

R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
142,978 404,899
309,977 13,825
3,490 4,813
5,419 1,063
461,864 424,600

R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
34,204 38,657
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(d) Reconciliation between financial position movement and cash flows from financing activities

R$
Short and Short and Interest Short and Short and Interest
long term long term  Proposed on equity long term long term  Proposed on equity
Note loans lease liabilities dividends Payable Total Loans lease liabilities  Dividends payable Total
2023 2022

Balance as of December 31, of Prior Year 1,461,801 108,560 82,484 113,544 1,766,389 1,100,197 96,277 52,792 52,078 1,301,344
Cash flows from financing activities items:
Proceeds from loans 942,690 - - - 942,690 796,240 - - - 796,240
Repayment of loans (1,041,740) - - - (1,041,740) (463,400) - - - (463,400)
Payment of lease liabilities - (31,134) - - (31,134) - (26,476) - - (26,476)
Interest on equity paid 20 - - (79,689) (79,689) - - - (52,078) (52,078)
Dividend paid 25.c - - (82,484) - (82,484) - (62,770) - (62,770)
Total cash flows used in financing activities (99,050) (31,134) (82,484) (79,689) (292,357) 332,840 (26,476) (62,770) (52,078) 191,516
Other items:
Additions of lease liabilities 16 - 26,017 - - 26,017 - 41,089 - - 41,089
Terminations of lease 16 - (687) - - (687) - (2,330) - - (2,330)
Interest and exchange rate variation
expenses 148,801 11,414 - - 160,215 74,087 7,110 - - 81,197
Interest and exchange rate variation
payments (149,662) (11,414) - - (161,076) (46,230) (7,110) - - (53,340)
Proceeds from investment loans 67 - - - 67 11,895 - - - 11,895
Repayment of investment loans (13,150) - - - (13,150) (14,034) - - - (14,034)
Working Capital - PROADI and PROVIN 25.e 2,751 - - - 2,751 3,046 - - - 3,046
Dividend provisioned 25.c - 138,190 - 138,190 - 92,462 - 92,462
Interest on equity credited 20 - - - - 122,750 122,750
Withholding income tax 20 - - - - - - (9,206) (9,206)
Total other items (11,193) 25,330 138,190 - 152,327 28,764 38,759 92,462 113,544 273,529
Balance as of December 31, of the Year 1,351,558 102,756 138,190 33,855 1,626,359 1,461,801 108,560 82,484 113,544 1,766,389
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18 Trade payables

19

R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
National suppliers 871,490 846,262
National related party suppliers (Note 12) 47,772 25,106
Foreign suppliers 37,039 14,687
Foreign related party suppliers - 5,831
956,301 891,886

The Group participates in a supply chain finance program under which its suppliers may elect to
receive early payment of their invoices from a bank by factoring their receivable from the
Group. Under the arrangement, a bank agrees to pay amounts to a participating supplier in
respect of invoices owed by the Group and receives settlement from the Group at a later date.
The principal purpose of this program is to facilitate efficient payment processing and enable
the willing suppliers to sell their receivables due from the Group to a bank before their due
date. The Group does not incur any additional interest towards the bank on the amounts due to
the suppliers.

The Group has not derecognized the original liabilities to which the arrangement applies because
neither a legal release was obtained nor the original liability was substantially modified on
entering into the arrangement. The Group discloses the amounts related to the program within
trade payables because the nature and function of the financial liability remain the same as
those of other trade payables. The payments to the bank are included within operating cash
flows because they continue to be part of the normal operating cycle of the Group and their
principal nature remains operating - i.e. payments for the purchase of goods and services. The
payments to a supplier by the bank are considered non-cash transactions for the Group.

As of December 31, 2023, the balance of trade payables negotiated by suppliers, related to the
supply chain finance program, was RS 228,514 (RS 129,605 as of December 31, 2022).

Employees and other payroll related liabilities

R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Payroll and related charges 16,146 14,567
Provision for vacation 57,005 48,060
Provision for variable remuneration 10,687 33,224
Other 5,132 4,602
88,970 100,453

The Group Employees benefits' treatment is in accordance with local legal requirements. These
requirements mainly call for and are limited to monthly contributions to Social Security funds
(INSS, FGTS). The Group has no obligations under defined benefits or defined contribution plans.
The Group offers other short-term benefits to its employees, which are expensed when incurred.
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Interest on equity payable - short and long term
During 2023 there was no Interest on equity distribution.

The Company, in Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings held on a quarterly basis through 2022,
approved recommendations of the Board of Directors for the distribution of Interest on equity
for the year ended December 31, 2022, in the total amount of RS 86,150 fully paid on June 15,
2023. On this amount, there is the foreign shareholders’ income tax to be withheld at source, in
the amount of RS 6,461, already deducted from the Interest on equity payable balance.

On June 30, 2022, in the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, the Company approved the
recommendation of the Board of Directors for the distribution of additional Interest on Equity in
the amount of RS 36,600 (RS 33,855 net of income tax). This amount is to be paid up until
December, 2027, recorded in long term liability, observing the financial situation of the
Company and in accordance with the Dividend Policy.

Payable taxes

R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
State VAT - ICMS 23,942 15,161
Withholding income tax - payroll (IRRF) 5,397 4,779
Federal VAT - PIS and COFINS 20 23
Other 3,939 2,442
33,298 22,405

Other current and non-current liabilities

R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Advances from customers 8,665 6,078
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Fino Grao 239 216
Accounts payable for acquisition of operations - Café Manaus - 669
Contingent consideration - Positive Company - 916
Contingent consideration - Mitsui Alimentos 16,745 16,745
Marketing services 328 216
Payable for acquisition of fixed assets 2,639 3,184
Provision for handling and storage 622 -
Provision for lawyers’ fees 10,260 11,798
Warranties 3,402 1,646
Sundry 10,492 16,404
53,392 57,872
Current liabilities 33,024 38,375
Non-current liabilities 20,368 19,497
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Provision for legal proceedings

Based on information from Group management supported by its legal advisors, an analysis of the
pending legal proceedings, and previous experience with regards to amounts claimed, the Group
recorded provisions for amounts considered sufficient to cover probable losses from current legal
actions. The amounts of probable and possible losses with respect to legal and administrative
actions against the Group are as follows:

RS

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Probable Possible Probable Possible
loss loss loss loss
Labor (a) 24,333 191,187 22,387 186,160
Tax (b) 44,423 306,623 45,559 288,012
Civil 2,618 23,638 2,206 20,870
71,374 521,448 70,152 495,042

The Group is party to a number of labor claims filed by former employees and service providers challenging, among
other things, unpaid overtime, night shift premiums and risk premiums, employment guarantees, and the
reimbursement of withholdings from payroll such as social contributions and trade union charges, among others. As of
December 31, 2023, total quantity of labor claims was 606 (560 as of December 31, 2022).

Tax claims details by type are demonstrated in the following table:

RS

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Probable Possible Probable Possible
Loss loss loss loss
State VAT - ICMS (i) 20,037 144,260 18,615 136,581
Federal VAT - PIS/COFINS/IPI (if) 22,519 126,870 24,385 117,822
Income taxes (IRPJ/CSLL) (iii) 1,354 34,169 1,998 32,237
Other 513 1,324 561 1,372
44,423 306,623 45,559 288,012

The main legal claims are listed below:

State VAT - ICMS

State VAT (ICMS) - Sao Paulo State - Tax authorities claim that the Group Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A. incorrectly
calculated the ICMS (State VAT) in transactions with goods subject to the ICMS tax substitution method (ST), claiming
that it should have used the sale price for consumer instead of the cost of goods entry, although the State of Sao
Paulo legislation determines that wholesalers are not allowed to receive goods without the ICMS - ST calculation. The
infraction notices were received in December 2020 and refer to the periods from January 2016 to December 2016. The
Group received a new infraction notice in May 2021 referring to the periods from January 2017 to December 2017.

On August 2, 2021, the Group obtained a partially favorable judgment at the State of Sao Paulo Tax Judgment Office,
first administrative instance, regarding the State VAT (ICMS) treatment applied in transactions with goods subject to
the ICMS tax substitution method (ST) in the period from January to December of 2016. The court judged favorably for
the Group the matter of greater value, but judged two less relevant topics unfavorably, which the Group still has the
opportunity to counter, both administratively and in courts, arguing the decision.

43



(if)

Trés Coracdées Alimentos S.A. 8

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(In thousands of Brazilian Reals) 3coracbes

Considering that the decision is at least in part contrary to the Government and the relatively high values involved,
the judging body itself will send the process to the second administrative instance for review.

The partially favorable outcome at the first administrative instance confirmed the understanding of the Group and of
its tax advisors, that there is no need to record any liability. The Group’s tax advisors responsible for monitoring the
proceeding classify the risk of loss as possible. As of December 31, 2023 the amount of the legal claim was RS 83,252
(RS 75,782 as of December 31, 2022).

State VAT (ICMS) - Mato Grosso State - On October 10, 2021, the subsidiary Café Brasileiro received a tax assessment
notice, issued by the Mato Grosso State Treasury Office, in the total amount of RS 48,815. Tax authorities argued that
the Group used incorrectly the state tax benefit of the fiscal years 2018 and 2019, calculating less state VAT (ICMS).
The Company defended the tax noticed with its legal advisors. The period regarding the tax notice is from before the
acquisition date, and because of that any payment regarding this issue will be reimbursed by the former owners.

The Group’s tax advisors responsible for monitoring the proceeding classify the risk of loss as possible. As of 31
December 2023 the amount of the legal claim was RS 63,382 (RS 57,128 as of December 31, 2022).

Federal VAT - PIS/COFINS/IPI

Federal VAT (PIS/COFINS) credits - tax authorities claim that the Group (together with most other coffee companies in
Brazil) had purchased green coffee from de facto, but not legally constituted companies in order to receive more PIS
and COFINS credits and demand the difference between the total credit and the presumed credit. On March 31 2023,
the Company adhered to the Tax Litigation Reduction Program, the program contemplates a reduction of up to 100%
of penalties and fines applied on tax debts that are in the midst of administrative proceedings, and taxpayers can use
tax losses accumulated to offset part of the tax debt (up to 70% of remainder after the discounts). Almost the totality
of the debits related to green coffee will be paid with the program, given the probability of loss, according to
unfavorable administrative decisions and indication of the lawyers. Because of that, there was a reduction in the
amount, which was RS 727 on December 31, 2023 to in comparison with RS 70,688 on December 31, 2022.

Notices of infraction - Federal VAT (PIS and COFINS) - On March 2, 2020, the companies Trés Coracdes Alimentos S.A.
and Café Trés Coraces S.A. received tax assessment notices issued by the Brazilian Federal Revenue. The infraction
notices refer to non-collection of Federal VAT (PIS and COFINS), referring to the periods from December 2015 to
December 2018. The federal tax authorities claim that the companies did not calculate PIS and COFINS over the sales
of powdered cappuccino and coffee with milk. They do not agree with the Group's understanding that the products
are coffee based and therefore taxed at rate zero. In addition, the authorities also contest what they believe were
undue tax credits over intercompany transfers of finished goods. The Group and its tax and legal advisors responsible
for monitoring the processes classify the chances of loss as possible. Therefore, management understands there is no
need to record a provision for any liability. As of December 31, 2023 the amount of the legal claim was RS 123,924 (RS
112,699 as of December 31, 2022).

Notices of infraction - Federal VAT (PIS and COFINS) - On February 9, 2023 the Group was notified of the
administrative decision that didn’t recognize the tax credits regarding the lawsuit about the exclusion of State VAT
(ICMS) from the PIS and COFINS bases. Among the total requested of RS 122,765, RS 18,523 refers to non-cumulative
credits. Another part of the total amount, RS 72,748 was not authorized, resulting in a claim of RS 3,897. The process
is monitored by the tax legal team of the Group. Management understands that the probability to not have success is
remote, considering that the methodology used represents the judicial decision in a more reliable way. As for non-
cumulative credits, the Group will use them extemporaneously in the EFD Contributions (Accessory obligation that
contains the detailed calculation of PIS/COFINS). The tax proceeding waits for the judgment in the first administrative
level. The Group’s tax advisors responsible for monitoring the proceeding classify the risk of loss as remote. As of
December 31,2023 the amount of the legal claim was RS 5,151.

Federal excise tax (IPl) - tax authorities claim the tax treatment applied, in respect to federal tax IPI - tax on
manufactured goods, for powder juice was incorrect. According to the Group’s understanding of the regulation,
powder juice is a product classified at zero IPI tax rate. According to tax authorities, the Group should have used tax
rates of 27% for the period from January 2011 to December 2011, 20% for the period from January 2012 to May 2012
and 10% since June 2012. The total updated amount of the claim, as of December 31, 2023 is RS 81,199 (RS 75,590 as
of December 31, 2022). In 2019 the Group obtained 2 favorable outcomes in the first administrative instance; the
Government may still contest the outcome at higher instances of the Administrative Board of Tax Appeals (CARF). The
Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion that there is no need to record any liability, since the classification of
loss is remote.
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(iii) Income taxes (IRPJ/CSLL)
Goodwill amortization - tax authorities claim that the Group does not meet all criteria to deduct Goodwill
amortization for tax purposes. As of October 31, 2017, the Goodwill Amortization process was judged in the Superior
Chamber of Tax Appeals of CARF (Federal Administrative Court). In June 2020 the Group obtained a favorable
outcome in the first judicial instance; the Government may still contest the outcome at higher judicial instances. The
Group and its tax advisors are of the opinion that there is no need to record any liability. As of December 31, 2023,
the amount of the legal claim was RS 34,006 (RS 32,074 as of December 31, 2022). The claim amount increased due to
interest incurred.

Changes in provision for legal proceedings during the year

RS
2023 2022
Balance as of 1 January 70,152 65,703
Provisions made during the year 5,832 8,298
Legal proceedings settled during the year (4,610) (3,849)
Balance as of December 31, 71,374 70,152

Judicial deposits

The Group has, on December 31, 2023, the amounts of RS 9,260 of judicial deposits (RS 8,988 as
of December 31, 2022). These deposits are required by courts associated with various open legal
proceedings and comprise a number of individual case deposits of smaller amounts.

24 Income taxes and social contribution

(a) Amounts recognized in statement of income

R$
2023 2022
Current taxes 18,931 (51,115)
Deferred taxes 12,690 3,847
Carryforward tax loss 67,165 2,147
Tax in income statement as of December 31, 98,786 (45,121)
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate
RS

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Profit before income tax 222,558 497,738
Income tax expenses (34%) (75,670) (169,231)
Permanent differences and temporary time differences , net:
Equity method 6,967 3,541
Interest on equity - 41,735
State tax incentives 78,918 82,393
Federal incentive 798 8,476
R&D Benefits 11,192 3,508
IAS 21 adjustments (2,695) (6,654)
Tax rate differential 336 (7,405)
Non-deductible expenses 4,080 (5,305)
Carryforward tax losses from previous periods 31,277 -
Gain lawsuits 29,384 232
Profit eliminations on inventory 16,721 (4,935)
Other (2,522) 8,524
Tax in Income statement 98,786 (45,121)
Effective tax rate (44.39%) 9.1%
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

RS
Social
contribution

Temporary differences Basis  Income tax (*) (9%) 31/12/2023  31/12/2022
Provision for legal proceedings 27,491 5,489 2,474 7,963 8,250
Inventory adjustments (290) (707) (26) (733) 1,147
Allowance for expected credit losses 27,183 4,787 2,446 7,233 6,899
Derivatives transactions 10,792 2,696 971 3,667 4,281
Provision for discounts 94,666 15,582 8,520 24,102 22,446
Provision for short term employee performance award 7,062 2,052 636 2,688 7,960
Provision for revenue recognition 17,676 2,849 1,591 4,440 5,238
Difference between economic depreciation and tax rate (4,444) (1,111) (400) (1,511) (1,531)
Goodwill amortization (92,263) (12,151) (8,304) (20,455) (20,455)
Exchange rate variation cash basis (14,110) (3,516) (1,270) (4,786) 2,110
Profit elimination on inventory 40,165 10,041 3,615 13,656 536
IFRS 16 - Leasing 15,342 2,686 1,381 4,067 3,424
Federal VAT credit loss (Note 10) 20,080 3,866 1,807 5,673 -
Carryforward tax losses 217,923 50,101 - 50,101 2,147
Positive Company acquisition (9,100) (3,064) - (3,064) (30,561)
Mitsui Alimentos acquisition (86,957) (21,739) (7,826) (29,565) (3,071)
Other 26,763 6,036 2,409 8,668 2,680
Total net deferred tax 72,144 11,500
Non-current assets 75,091 17,842
Non-current liabilities (2,947) (6,342)

Income tax rate (excluding the Social contribution) is 25%, applicable to all Group’s subsidiaries. However, as the Company has tax incentives (see Note
25.e), the Group s future average income tax rate expected to be applied when the deferred tax is realized or settled, is 13.17% (2023 and 2022).
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In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management estimates future taxable
income and the timing of reversal of the temporary differences.

When it is more likely than not that a part or all of the deferred tax assets are not recoverable,
such a portion is not recorded by the Group. Under Brazilian tax law, carryforwards tax loss

(including those of the Social contribution) do not expire, however, their use is limited to up to
30% of annual taxable income and they do not benefit from any interest or monetary correction.

Considering the occurrence of taxable profit in recent years, the Group assessed the future
taxable profits in order to calculate deferred tax assets on accumulated losses. The subsidiary,
Principal Comércio e Industria de Café Ltda., has, as of December 31, 2023, RS 1,822 (Principal
Comeércio e Industria de Café Ltda. RS 5,162 as of December 31, 2022) of unrecognized
carryforward tax losses, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the subsidiaries can use the benefits.

(d) Uncertainty over income tax treatment
As described in the Note 23(iii), tax authorities claim that the Group does not meet all criteria
to deduct goodwill amortization for income tax purposes. The Group understands that the
goodwill arose from an operation with an economic basis and therefore it can be used for tax
purposes. No amount of income tax was recognized in these consolidated financial statements,
because the Group believes that the tax thesis used by the Company are in compliance with the
applicable law and believes that it is probable that it would successfully defend the Group’s tax
treatment in court. The Group believes that its provisions for tax liabilities are adequate for all
open tax years based on its assessment of all factors, including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience.

Equity
(a) Share capital

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, Trés Coracoes Alimentos S.A.’s share capital consists of the
following:

R$
Shareholders % 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Strauss Coffee B.V. 50% 138,232.14 137,765.38
Sao Miguel Fundo de Investimento em Participacoes 50% 138,232.14 137,765.38
276,464.28 275,530.76

Share capital as of December 31, 2023 consisted of 27,646,427,639 (27,553,075,054 as of
December 31, 2022) shares with a nominal value of RS 0.01 (one cent each).

(b) Translation adjustments
Management decided to use two different functional currencies, according to IAS 21 - Effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates. For internal market operations, the functional currency is the
Brazilian real (RS). For the green coffee export activity, the functional currency is the United
States dollar (USS).
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Management assessed the Group operations in order to present its green coffee export activity
as a “foreign operation”, as established by IAS 21 - Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates,
and, thereby, could apply separate accounting for the purposes of consolidation.

The main reasons to treat the green coffee export activity as a separated operation is that the
export activity has its own management, which is considered independent in terms of decisions
about green coffee purchases and sales (export entity).

The exchange rate effects recorded in the translation adjustments arise from the following
assets and liabilities, for the years ended on December 31, 2023 and 2022:

R$
Trés Coracgoes Café Trés
December 31, 2023 Alimentos Coracgbes Total
Inventories - (1,906) (1,906)
Fixed assets 705 (1,566) (861)
Trade receivables - (1,616) (1,616)
Derivatives - (620) (620)
Cost of sales - (109) (109)
Loans and borrowings - 10,227 10,227
705 4,410 5,115
R$
Trés Coracgoes Café Trés

December 31, 2022 Alimentos Coracobes Total
Inventories - (1,693) (1,693)
Fixed assets (17,778) 188 (17,590)
Trade receivables - 1,830 1,830
Derivatives - (291) (291)
Cost of sales - (241) (241)
Loans and borrowings - 18,272 18,272
(17,778) 18,065 287

(c) Dividends
Dividends are calculated in accordance with the terms agreed upon in the Shareholders’
Agreement, with a rate of 35% over net income, adjusted by financial results. This amount is
provisioned as a proposed dividend in the balance sheet, subject to the approval by the General
shareholders meeting.

The proposal for 2023 profit destination is to be paid in the amount of RS 138,190 until
December 2024.

The proposal for 2022 profit destination was paid on June 15, 2023 the amount of RS 82,484,

after the credit of interest on equity, in the amount of RS 86,150 (over this amount there is the
foreign shareholders’ withholding income tax of RS 6,461).
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In addition, the Company approved the recommendation of the Board of Directors for the
distribution of additional interest on equity in the amount of RS 36,600 (over this amount there
is the foreign shareholders’ withholding income tax of RS 2,745) to be paid up until December
2027 - Note 20.

(d) Retained earnings

Legal reserve

Created at the rate of 5% on profit for the year, limited to 20% of share capital. On December
31, 2023, an additional reserve in the amount of RS 187 was created and the limit was achieved.
This reserve can only be used for capital increases or absorption of losses.

(e) Tax incentives reserve
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company received government grants in the
amount of RS 134,943 (RS 147,264 as of December 31, 2022). The tax incentive reserve cannot
be distributed as dividends. If the Company distributes it in the future, the amounts have the
following tax treatment depending on the incentive:

Federal incentives - the amount of income taxes not paid and distributed as dividends, must be
paid as back taxes, as if there was no incentive;

Other incentives - the amount distributed must be added back to the taxable income used for
calculating income tax and social contribution, under a combined rate of up to 34% in the period
of the distribution, and will be also subject to PIS and COFINS taxes (currently 9.25%) on the
distributed amount.

The existing government incentives are as follows:

PROVIN - Ceara State

The Government of the state of Ceara, in accordance with the state public policies geared
towards promoting the industrial development of Ceara, decided to provide financial assistance
for the investments necessary for installation of the industrial unit in the city of Eusébio, state
of Ceara. The incentive consists of the postponement of payment of the ICMS state VAT tax and
the deduction of 56.25% of total sales of roasted and ground coffee. The incentive is valid until
July 2028.

PROEDI - Rio Grande do Norte State

The benefit consists in the deduction of presumed tax credit of the VAT payable, related to
outflows based on own production. For the Natal factory the presumed tax credit percentage
ranges from 75% to 80% and for the Mossoro unit it ranges from 80% to 85%. The percentage is
determined according to the level of employment and unit revenues. The incentive is valid until
June 2032.

PRODEIC - Mato Grosso State

The subsidiary Café Brasileiro has a facility in the state of Mato Grosso, which produces roasted
and ground coffee, which is benefited since 2017 with a state VAT Tax Incentives named
PRODEIC (Mato Grosso Industrial and Commercial Development Program). The incentive is valid
until December 2032.
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Café Brasileiro is part of the PRODEIC Investment Food Industry of Vegetable and Animal Origin
sub-module, with the objective of promoting the industrial development of products of animal
and vegetable origin, by adding value to raw materials in Mato Grosso.

The tax benefit will consist of credit granted on the outputs of products manufactured at the
industrial plant, with a percentage of 85% on the operations of intra-state deliveries and 90% on
the operations of inter-state deliveries.

Stimulus credit - State VAT in Amazonas state

The government of the state of Amazonas, aiming at the integration, expansion, modernization
and consolidation of the industrial sector, grants the tax incentive to the roasted and ground
coffee industries established in the state. The incentive consists of the application of the
percentage of 90.25% on the outstanding balance of State VAT (ICMS) calculated on the
operation with roasted and ground coffee, deducting the tax payable. The incentive is valid until
December 2032.

Presumed tax credit - State VAT in Minas Gerais State

The group s most important facility is located in Santa Luzia, Minas Gerais. The government,
aiming to protect and stimulate enterprises with the aim of facilitating the dynamization and
modernization of the Minas Gerais production park and strengthening the state and regional
economy, granted a presumed credit of 5% on interstate deliveries of roasted and ground coffee
destined to the states of Sao Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, Rio Grande do Sul and Santa Catarina. The
incentive is valid until December 2032.

Other state tax incentives
The Group has received certain tax incentives and special tax regimes also in other Brazilian
states, with no significant impacts on these consolidated financial statements.

Federal incentive - “Re-investment”

The Group is allowed to allocate part of its income tax payable to capital investments. The
projects associated with these investments are submitted to the authorities’ approval. The
allocated amount is recognized in profit or loss at the moment of the Group’s decision to
proceed, since there is reasonable assurance the grant will be approved.

Federal incentive - “Exploration profit”

The Group benefits from the income tax exemption of 75% of the operating income derived from
its main activities at the units of Eusébio (state of Ceara), Manaus (state of Amazonas), Natal
and Mossoro (state of Rio Grande do Norte).

The industrial site of Manaus (AM) has its incentive validated until December 2028 and the other
factories have their incentives validated until December 2027. The factory of Santa Luzia in
Minas Gerais is not established in an incentive area, the reason why it has no Federal incentive.

Tax Incentive for technological innovation

The Federal Law n°® 11.196/05, known as “Lei do Bem”, offers tax incentives to legal entities
that carry out research, development and technological innovation, with application starting in
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the Group in 2017.

According to the Law, technological innovation is a conception of a new product or
manufacturing process, as well as an addition of new features or characteristics to an existing
product or process, that brings incremental improvements and effective gains in quality or
productivity, resulting in greater competitiveness in the market.

The legal entities are allowed to deduct (additionally) from the calculation of the IRPJ (income
tax) and CSLL (social contribution) a percentage of the expenditures incurred with technological
research and development of technological innovation, classifiable as operating expenses.

Reserve for profit to be distributed

Management, with approval of the shareholders, decided to create a reserve for profit to be
distributed, for the remaining profit after all destinations above. In December 31, 2023 was the
amount of RS 936,482 (RS 888,926 as of December 31, 2022).

Revenue

Disaggregated net revenue information
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RS
Products Services 31/12/2023
Geographical markets
Domestic 7,630,974 1,773 7,632,747
Foreign
Japan 109,614 - 109,614
Chile 39,607 - 39,607
Switzerland 35,127 35,127
Germany 27,696 27,696
United States 13,514 13,514
Other countries 38,406 - 38,406
7,894,938 1,773 7,896,711
RS
Products Services 31/12/2022
Geographical markets
Domestic 7,808,857 876 7,809,733
Foreign
Japan 75,606 75,606
Switzerland 70,217 70,217
United States 65,739 65,739
Netherlands 54,120 54,120
Chile 32,135 32,135
Canada 28,926 28,926
Other countries 33,292 - 33,292
8,168,892 876 8,169,768
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Composition of Net Revenue

Products - domestic
Products - foreign
Services

Other

Taxes on sales

State VAT incentives
Discounts

Other deductions
Net revenue

Cost of sales by nature

According to source
Cost of sales - domestic
Cost of sales - foreign

According to components

Materials consumed

Wages, salaries and related expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Services contracted

Maintenance

Other

Selling and marketing expenses by nature

Wages, salaries and related expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Transport expenses

Export expenses

Services contracted

Marketing

Travel expenses

Other
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RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
9,581,267 9,414,021
265,080 360,036
1,804 901
702 1,970
(993,267) (931,963)
232,271 251,056
(859,691) (673,784)
(331,455) (252,469)
7,896,711 8,169,768
R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(6,010,355) (6,056,242)
(166,290) (231,619)
(6,176,645) (6,287,861)
RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(5,946,955) (6,086,545)
(95,987) (81,221)
(33,253) (30,779)
(23,150) (18,175)
(13,896) (11,108)
(64,404) (60,033)
(6,176,645) (6,287,861)
RS
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(525,129) (457,852)
(42,556) (50,103)
(327,758) (284,997)
(5,245) (8,985)
(99,057) (74,534)
(117,663) (148,349)
(17,126) (15,489)
(84,343) (59,332)
(1,218,877) (1,099,641)
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General and administrative expenses by nature

Wages, salaries and related expenses

Tax expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Constitution (Reversal) of provision for legal proceedings
Travel expenses

Maintenance

Other

Finance expenses, net

Finance expenses

Interest expenses

Interest on loans and borrowings
Exchange rate effect

Interest on lease liabilities
Other

Finance income
Interest income
Interest from deposits

3

3coracoes

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(90,192) (101,279)
(18,243) (13,437)
(48,458) (43,644)
3,393 (465)
(4,585) (3,213)
(20,345) (17,643)
(18,566) (27,670)
(196,996) (207,351)
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(5,844) (1,929)
(160,470) (93,135)
716 (3,207)
(11,414) (7,110)
(9,402) (8,360)
(186,414) (113,741)
29,417 19,415
64,165 26,426
93,582 45,841
(92,832) (67,900)

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(a) Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss

Short term deposits - Deposits in banks
Deposits with brokers

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables with third parties

Trade receivables with related parties
Loans to related parties

Other

Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value

Trade payables

Short and long term loans

Short and long term lease liabilities
Distribution to shareholders

Payables for acquisition

Other

Note

N o

N 00 00 O

—_

18
17
16
25.cand 20
22

Financial
assets at fair
value

772,309
10,788

3
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R$ RS
Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Financial financial
assets at liabilities
amortized amortized
cost cost 31/12/2023 Level 2 31/12/2023
772,309 772,309 772,309
10,788 10,788 10,788
98,677 98,677 98,677
720,524 720,524 720,524
21,218 21,218 21,218
50,959 50,959 50,959
956,301 956,301 956,301
1,351,558 1,351,558 1,481,320 1,351,558
102,756 102,756 102,756
171,915 171,915 171,915
239 239 239
44,488 44,488 44,488
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Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss

Short term deposits - Deposits in banks
Deposits with brokers

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables with third parties

Trade receivables with related parties
Loans to related parties

Other

Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value

Trade payables

Short and long term loans

Short and long term lease liabilities
Distribution to shareholders

Payables for acquisition

Other

Note

N o

N 00 00 O

—_

18
17
16
25.c and 20
22

Financial
assets at fair
value

985,718
15,148

3
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RS RS
Carrying amount Fair value
Other
Financial financial
assets at liabilities
amortized amortized
cost cost 31/12/2022 Level 2 31/12/2022
985,718 985,718 985,718
15,148 15,148 15,148
52,018 52,018 52,018
763,172 763,172 763,172
11,932 11,932 11,932
14,389 14,389 14,389
72,271 72,271 72,271
891,886 891,886 891,886
1,461,801 1,461,801 1,546,093 1,546,093
108,560 108,560 108,560
196,028 196,028 196,028
885 885 885
50,909 50,909 50,909
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The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined by reference to price at which they
could be exchanged in a current transaction between parties willing to negotiate, and not in a
forced sale or liquidation. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair value:

Regarding derivative balances, the Group determines the fair value which is identified in the fair
value hierarchy as the Level 2 of source of information.

The amounts of deposits presented in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents are
close to its realizable value because the operations are performed at variable interest rate and
are immediately convertible to a determined amount of cash, which is identified in the fair
value hierarchy as the Level 2 of source of information.

The fair value of non-negotiable instruments, bank loans and other debts, as well as other non-
current financial liabilities, are estimated using discounted future cash flows at the rates
currently available for similar instruments, which is identified in the fair value hierarchy as the
Level 2 of source of information.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not quoted in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is considered as valued from Level 3
source of information.

Specific valuation techniques that might be used to value financial instruments in general
include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows based on observable yield curves;

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value of the
remaining financial instruments.

(b) Risk management

The Group is exposed to the following risks as a result of using financial instruments:

Credit risk
Commodity price risk
Interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk

Liquidity risk
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Capital structure risk.
This note provides information regarding the exposure of the Group to these risks and regarding
the policy of the Group for management of such risks.

Forward transactions sensitivity analyses are determined according to the changes in the price of
the relevant underlying asset and interest differences deriving from interest rates and storage
costs (for green coffee).

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of the Group incurring a monetary loss if a customer or counterparty does
not meet its contractual obligations, and it derives mainly from debit balances of customers and
cash and cash equivalents balances held at financial institutions. In order to mitigate this risk,
the Group assesses the financial situation of its customers and counterparts, as well as defines
credit limits and monitors outstanding debts and operates only with first line financial
institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

R$

31/12/2023 31/12/2022

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 870,986 1,037,736
Deposits with brokers (Note 7) 10,788 15,148
Trade receivables (Note 8) 741,742 775,104
Other receivables 41,699 63,283
Judicial deposits 9,260 8,988
1,674,475 1,900,259

Management assesses its credit risk exposure as low, once the trade receivables are not
concentrated. The largest customer represents 7.23% of 2023 revenue (7.79% in 2022).

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from individual
customers, which comprise a very large number of small balances. Loss rates are calculated
using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll rates are calculated separately for exposures
in different segments based on the following common credit risk characteristics: geographic
region and type of product purchased.

Provision for expected credit losses amounts to RS 10,864 as of December 31, 2023 (RS 17,789 as
of December 31, 2022), representing 1.46% (2.12% as of December 31, 2022) of total trade
receivables balance, and is expected to properly reflect the existing credit risk.

Commodity price risk

The prices of raw materials used in manufacture (primarily green coffee) of the Group’s
products are affected, among other things, by uncontrollable factors, such as weather
conditions.
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Green coffee export business

For its green coffee export activity, the Group covers its fixed future sales agreements by both
physical inventory, fixed future purchase agreements and uses financial derivatives to a limited
extent. Below is a table with the quantities of bags (60 kg each) which the Group was committed
to purchase or sell in the future, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
Purchase agreements:
Price fixed 15,550 35,527
Sales agreements:
Price fixed 107,096 172,410
Price to be fixed 12,120 18,300

Green coffee for the industry (internal market)

For its internal market production, the Group mainly seeks to manage its industry green coffee
price exposure by managing its physical inventory of green coffee and its green coffee future
purchases, while it only uses financial derivatives to a limited extent. When green coffee prices
are attractive, the Group typically increases its coverage in advance of any expected price
increases. Similarly, when green coffee prices are deemed high, the Group decreases its
coverage of green coffee in anticipation of lower prices in the future. The Group coverage can
normally range from as low as 2 months to up to 6 months.

Commodity financial derivatives - both green coffee export business and internal
market

As of December 31, 2023 there is no open derivatives position and no sensitivity analysis was
required.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not normally use derivative financial instruments in order to reduce exposure to
risks arising from changes in interest rates. At the report date the interest rate profile of the

Group's interest-bearing financial instrument was:
Carrying amount

31/12/2023 31/12/2022
RS

Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities - Short and long terms loans (274,652) (599,404)
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - Short terms deposits 772,309 985,718
Financial liabilities - Short and long terms loans (1,076,906) (862,397)
Net exposure (579,249) (476,083)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - CDI and TJLP
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Changes in the interest rates as of the report date would increase (decrease) equity and the
income or loss of the following period by the amounts presented below. This analysis was
performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same.

December 31, 2023

Annual
weighted
Decrease of 10% Decrease of 5% interest Increase of 5% Increase of 10%
R$
Total 30,460 15,230 (63,696) (15,230) (30,460)
December 31, 2022
Annual
weighted
Decrease of 10% Decrease of 5% interest Increase of 5% Increase of 10%
R$
Total 42,930 21,465 (28,841) (21,465) (42,930)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fixed interest assets and liabilities of the Group (such as deposits and loans) are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, any change in the interest rate as of the report date
would not have an effect on the statement of income.

Inflation rate

Brazilian inflation was 4.62 for the year ended December 31, 2023 (5.78% for the year ended
December 31, 2022) as measured by the IPCA consumer price index of the independent Fundacao
Getulio Vargas. The Brazilian economy is not considered as hyperinflationary according to IAS 29.
However, management is aware of the high inflation rates impact on the Group s financial

statements.

Foreign currency risk

Exposure to currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Financial assets
Foreign customers (Note 8)

Financial liabilities
Foreign suppliers (Note 18)
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Exposure to US$

R$
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
17,611 13,457
(37,039) (20,518)
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Short term loans (Note 17) (177,316) (179,596)
Total exposure (196,744) (186,657)

Sensitivity analysis of currency risk

Any change in the exchange rates of the principal currency, Brazilian Real, versus foreign
exchange rate currencies, mainly United States Dollars, as of December 31, would have
increased (decreased) equity and the income or loss by the amounts presented below. This
analysis was performed assuming that all the other variables remain the same and disregards use
of hedging instruments and tax effects.

The sensitivity analysis here relates to foreign currency risk arising from financial items
denominated in foreign currency, that is not the functional currency of the Group and its
investee companies. Therefore, the foreign currency risk arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations, which is reflected in a translation reserve, is not included in
this sensitivity analysis.

December 31, 2023

Exchange rate

Decrease Decrease carrying Increase of Increase of
of 10% of 5% amount 5% 10%
R$
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 4.8407
Effect in R$ Thousand 19,674 9,837 (196,744) (9,837) (19,674)

December 31, 2022

Exchange rate

Decrease Decrease carrying Increase of Increase of
of 10% of 5% amount 5% 10%
RS
Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate 4.6959 4.9568 5.2177 5.4786 5.7395
Effect in RS Thousand 34,660 17,330 (346,597) (17,330) (34,660)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments in order to reduce exposure to risks arising from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. As of December 31, 2022 and 2023, the derivative
financial instruments of the Group were as follows:

Expiration
Currency Currency / Maturity/ Face value
Receivable payable Sale RS
Forward currency contracts uss RS February/2024 192,570
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Presented hereunder is a sensitivity analysis of the Group’s derivative instruments (foreign
currency) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 in RS. Any change in the exchange rates of the
principal currency, Brazilian Real, versus foreign exchange rate currencies, mainly United States
Dollar, as of December 31, would have increased (decreased) the income or loss and the equity
by the amounts presented below (in RS). This analysis was performed assuming that all the other
variables remain the same, and disregards tax effects.

December 31, 2023

Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate

Effect of forwards

Decrease of 10%

Exchange rate

Decrease of 5% carrying amount

Increase of 5%

Increase of 10%

RS

4.3566

4.5987 4.8407

5.0827

5.3248

(19,518)

(9,946) 747

9,199

18,771

December 31, 2022

Functional currency
BRL/USD exchange rate

Effect of forwards

Liquidity risk

Decrease of 10%

Exchange rate

Decrease of 5% carrying amount

Increase of 5%

Increase of 10%

RS

4.6959

4.9568 5.2177

5.4786

5.7395

(8,609)

(4,305) 722

4,305

8,609

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and the impact of netting agreements. This
analysis is based on rates known as of December 31, such as foreign exchange rates and interest

rates.

December 31, 2023

Non-derivative financial
liabilities:

BRL long term loan

USD long term loan

BRL credit from bank
USD credit from bank
Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Carrying  Contractual
amount cash flow 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter
R$
461,863 544,152 179,762 334,208 23,177 3,239 3,766
712,379 792,313 792,313
177,316 183,176 183,176 - - - - -
102,756 102,756 42,888 26,265 21,307 5,476 1,594 5,226
956,301 956,301 956,301 - - - - -
133,699 133,699 24,359 109,340 - - - -
2,544,312 2,712,395 1,999,937 315,367 355,515 28,653 4,833 8,992

December 31, 2022
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Carrying  Contractual
amount cash flow 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereafter
R$
Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
BRL long term loan 424,600 468,872 447,548 15,059 5,180 1,085
USD long term loan - 3,554 - 3,554 - - -
BRL credit from bank 857,603 758,152 758,152 -
USD credit from bank 179,598 179,598 179,598 - - - - -
Lease liabilities 108,560 108,560 36,399 27,916 18,013 17,283 4,034 4,915
Trade payables 891,886 891,886 891,886 - - - - -
Other payab[es 152,247 152,247 132,750 19,497 - - - -
2,614,494 2,732,575 2,168,491 498,515 33,072 22,463 5,119 4,915

Capital structure management
Management policy is to maintain a solid capital base in order to maintain investors” and market
trust, as well as to maintain the future development of the business. Management monitors

returns on capital, which the Group defines as the relation between operational profit and total
equity. Management monitors as well the dividend and interest-on-equity amounts distributed to

the shareholders.

Management seeks to maintain a balanced level of returns to the shareholders, with a low risk
level of net debt and a healthy capital structure.

The Group’s equity and working capital versus net debt at the end of each year are presented

below:

Loans (Note 17)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 6)

Total

Equity

Equity/(Loans - Cash and cash equivalent) ratio as of December 31,

Trade receivables (Note 8)
Inventories (Note 9)
Trade payables (Note 18)

Total working capital

Working capital/(Loans - Cash and cash equivalent) ratio as of December 31,
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RS

2023 2022
1,351,558 1,461,801
(870,986) (1,037,736)
480,572 424,065
1,866,925 1,678,559
3.88 3.96
741,742 775,104
1,199,532 1,076,052
(956,301) (891,886)
984,973 959,270
2.05 2.26




	Reporting Package 2023
	פתיח דוח דירקטוריון רבעון רביעי Q4-PDFUA
	פרק המבוא + תוכן עניינים - מונגש VV-PDFUA
	דוח תקופתי לשנת 2023
	תוכן עניינים
	תוכן עניינים

	מבוא
	כרטיס ביקור
	נוכחות גלובלית
	שיתופי פעולה וחדשנות

	ייעוד קבוצת שטראוס
	קבוצת שטראוס תמיד הייתה חברה מונחית יעוד.

	תמצית הביצועים הפיננסיים לשנת 2023
	חזון, קיימות, אחריות תאגידית, השקעה חברתית ותרומות
	נתוני קיימות מרכזיים
	הגדרות


	תיאור עסקי התאגיד לאחר עיצוב  25.3.24 - מונגש-1645-PDFUA
	עדכון תיאור עסקי התאגיד
	תוכן עניינים – דוח תיאור עסקי התאגיד
	תיאור ההתפתחות הכללית של עסקי הקבוצה
	1. פעילות הקבוצה ותיאור התפתחות עסקיה
	1.1 פעילות הקבוצה
	1.2 התפתחות עסקיה של הקבוצה

	2. תחומי פעילות
	3. השקעות בהון התאגיד ועסקאות במניותיו
	4. חלוקת דיבידנדים

	מידע אחר
	5. מידע כספי לגבי תחומי פעילות החברה
	5.1 אופן איחוד פעילות החברות הבנות בדוחות הניהוליים
	5.2 נתונים כספיים לשנת 2023
	5.3 נתונים כספיים לשנת 2022
	5.4 נתונים כספיים לשנת 2021

	6. סביבה כללית והשפעת גורמים חיצוניים על פעילות הקבוצה

	תיאור עסקי הקבוצה  לפי תחומי פעילות
	7. כללי – ענף המזון והמשקאות
	8. מסגרת פעילות ישראל
	8.1 מידע כללי על מסגרת פעילות ישראל
	8.1.1 שינויים בהיקף הפעילות וברווחיות
	שינויים בהיקף המכירות הכספי לשנת 2023 בקטגוריות מובילות בתחום המזון והמשקאות

	8.1.2 התפתחויות בשווקים של מסגרת הפעילות ושינויים במאפייני הלקוחות
	8.1.4 מגבלות, חקיקה, תקינה ואילוצים מיוחדים החלים על התאגיד
	8.1.7 תחרות ותחליפים למוצרי מסגרת הפעילות
	נתח שוק כספי של המותג הפרטי משוק ה- FMCG

	8.1.8 רכוש קבוע, מקרקעין ומתקנים
	8.1.9 חומרי גלם וספקים

	8
	8.1
	8.2 תחום בריאות ואיכות חיים
	8.2.1 מידע כללי
	8.2.2 מוצרים
	8.2.3 פילוח הכנסות ורווחיות מוצרים (בהתאם לדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל).
	8.2.4 תחרות
	8.2.5 עונתיות
	8.2.6 כושר ייצור
	כושר הייצור של מפעלי הקבוצה בתחום בריאות ואיכות חיים נמדד בכמות התוצר השנתי. קווי הייצור במפעלי הקבוצה בתחום הם אוטומטיים, ומרביתם מופעלים בשלוש משמרות עבודה ביממה. יצוין כי מפעלי הקבוצה בתחום אינם חלופיים וכן כי מרבית קווי הייצור עצמם אינם חלופיים.
	8.2.7 רכוש קבוע, מקרקעין ומתקנים
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	a.
	b.
	i.
	ii.
	iii.
	iv.
	v.
	vi.
	vii.
	8.2.7.1 מפעלים
	8.2.8 מחקר ופיתוח
	8.2.9 נכסים לא מוחשיים
	8.2.9.1 רישיונות וזיכיונות
	8.2.9.2 סימני מסחר

	8.2.10 הון אנושי
	8.2.11 חומרי גלם וספקים
	8.2.12 הון חוזר
	8.2.13 מגבלות ופיקוח על תחום הפעילות
	8.2.13.1  הכרזה כמונופולין במעדני חלב
	8.2.14.1 הסכמים עם דנונה
	8.2.14.2 הסכם עם יטבתה


	8.3 תחום תענוג והנאה
	8.3.1 מידע כללי על תחום תענוג והנאה
	8.3.2 מוצרים
	8.3.3 פילוח הכנסות ורווחיות מוצרים (בהתאם לדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל).
	8.3.4 תחרות
	8.3.5 עונתיות להלן נתונים לשנים 2023 ו- 2022 בדבר הכנסות החברה בתחום תענוג והנאה, בחלוקה לפי רבעונים על פי הדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל:
	8.3.6 כושר ייצור
	מפעלים בתחום תענוג והנאה
	מרכזי הפצה, לוגיסטיקה ושטעון בתחום תענוג והנאה

	8.3.8 מחקר ופיתוח
	8.3.9 נכסים לא מוחשיים
	8.3.9.1 רישיונות וזיכיונות
	8.3.9.2 סימני מסחר ומדגמים

	8.3.10 הון אנושי
	8.3.11 חומרי גלם וספקים
	8.3.12 הון חוזר
	8.3.13 מגבלות ופיקוח על תחום הפעילות
	8.3.14 הסכמים מהותיים


	9. מסגרת פעילות הקפה (ישראל ובינלאומי)
	9.1 מידע כללי על מסגרת פעילות הקפה
	להלן מידע כללי על מסגרת פעילות הקפה, המשותף לתחום קפה ישראל ולתחום קפה בינלאומי.

	9.1.1 מבנה הפעילות והשינויים החלים בו
	9.1.2 שוק הקפה העולמי
	ככלל, תעשיית הקפה מהווה תחום אטרקטיבי, גדול ויציב, אשר מצוי בצמיחה מתמדת במונחי מטבע מקומי וכמויות ואינו תלוי, על פי רוב, בהאטה כלכלית. בשנת 2023 המשיכה המגמה של שנת 2022, לפיה, במרבית מדינות הפעילות הייתה צמיחה במונחי מטבע מקומי ומנגד, בחלק מהמדינות,...
	9.1.3 מגמות הצריכה בשוק הקפה
	9.1.4 שינויים בהיקף מסגרת הפעילות וברווחיות
	9.1.4.1 שינויים בהיקף הפעילות
	9.1.4.2 שינויים ברווחיות

	9.1.5 גורמי ההצלחה הקריטיים במסגרת הפעילות והשינויים החלים בהם
	9.1.6 מחסומי הכניסה העיקריים של מסגרות הפעילות ושינויים החלים בהם
	9.1.7 תחליפים למוצרי מסגרת הפעילות ושינויים החלים בהם
	9.1.8 חומרי גלם וספקים

	9.2 תחום קפה ישראל
	9.2.1 מידע כללי על תחום קפה ישראל
	ב. התפתחויות בשווקים או שינויים במאפייני הלקוחות - בישראל קיים גידול מתמשך בביקוש לקפה לכל סוגיו הנובע מעלייה בצריכת הקפה. כמו כן, בשנים האחרונות קיימת מגמה צומחת של גיוון בין סוגי הקפה הנצרכים לאורך היום. במהלך שנת 2023 המשיכה מגמת העלייה בצריכת הקפה...
	9.2.2 מוצרים
	(1) המוצרים העיקריים של הקבוצה בתחום קפה ישראל הם: קפה קלוי וטחון (בקטגוריות: קפה קלוי טחון (שחור), פילטר, פולי קפה קלויים וקפסולות למכונות אספרסו) לשימוש ביתי, מוסדיים וצריכת AFH. לשם המחשה:
	9.2.5 תחרות
	9.2.6 עונתיות
	להלן נתונים לשנים 2023 ו- 2022 בדבר הכנסות החברה בתחום קפה ישראל, בחלוקה לפי רבעונים, על פי הדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל:
	9.2.7 כושר ייצור
	9.2.8 רכוש קבוע, מקרקעין ומתקנים
	9.2.9 נכסים לא מוחשיים
	9.2.10 הון אנושי
	9.2.11 חומרי גלם וספקים
	9.2.12 הון חוזר
	9.2.13 מגבלות ופיקוח על פעילות התחום
	הכרזות כבעלת מונופול
	אישור הממונה על התחרות
	צו מוסכם


	9.3 תחום קפה בינלאומי
	9.3.1 מידע כללי על תחום קפה בינלאומי
	9.3.2 התפתחויות בשווקים של מסגרת הפעילות, או שינויים במאפייני הלקוחות שלו
	9.3.3 מוצרים
	9.3.4 פילוח הכנסות ורווחיות מוצרים ושירותים (בהתאם לדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל).
	9.3.5 תחרות
	בברזיל – הרפובליקה הפדרלית של ברזיל מחולקת ל- 26 מדינות הנהנות ממעמד פדרלי ומחוז פדרלי אחד שבו שוכנת הבירה ברזיליה. כפועל יוצא, השוק הינו אזורי ומבוזר ומאופיין בריבוי מתחרים. בכל אזור קיים מתחרה מרכזי מוביל אחד או שניים, מספר מתחרים בינוניים וכן מספר ...
	9.3.5.1 נתחי שוק

	9.3.6 עונתיות
	להלן נתונים לשנים 2023 ו- 2022 בדבר הכנסות החברה בתחום קפה בינלאומי, בחלוקה לפי רבעונים, על פי הדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל:
	9.3.7 כושר ייצור
	9.3.8 רכוש קבוע, מקרקעין ומתקנים
	9.3.9 נכסים בלתי מוחשיים
	9.3.10 הון אנושי
	9.3.11 חומרי גלם וספקים
	9.3.12 הון חוזר
	9.3.13 מגבלות ופיקוח על פעילות התחום
	9.3.14 הסכמים מהותיים
	מיזם משותף בברזיל



	10. תחום מטבלים וממרחים בינלאומי
	10.1 מידע כללי על תחום מטבלים וממרחים בינלאומי
	10.1.1 מבנה תחום הפעילות ושינויים החלים בו
	10.1.2 שינויים בהיקף הפעילות בתחום וברווחיותו
	10.1.3 שינויים בהיקף הפעילות והרווחיות של המגזר
	10.1.4  התפתחויות בשווקים של תחום הפעילות או שינויים במאפייני הלקוחות
	10.1.5 גורמי ההצלחה הקריטיים ושינויים החלים בהם
	10.1.6 מחסומי הכניסה העיקריים של תחום הפעילות ושינויים החלים בהם
	10.1.7 תחליפים למוצרי מסגרת הפעילות ושינויים החלים בהם

	10.2 מוצרים
	10.3 פילוח הכנסות ורווחיות מוצרים ושירותים (בהתאם לדוחות הניהוליים של החברה כהגדרתם בסעיף 5 לעיל)
	10.4 תחרות
	10.5 עונתיות
	10.6 כושר ייצור
	10.7 רכוש קבוע ומקרקעין
	10.8 מחקר ופיתוח
	10.9 נכסים בלתי מוחשיים
	10.10 הון אנושי
	10.11 חומרי גלם וספקים
	10.12 הון חוזר
	10.13 מגבלות ופיקוח על תחום הפעילות
	תחום הממרחים והמטבלים כפוף במדינות הפעילות למגוון חוקים, תקנים ותקנות, בין היתר, בנושאים של תעסוקה, איכות הסביבה, בטיחות מזון, ייצור ותיוג, הגנת הפרטיות ומניעת שחיתות ושוחד.
	10.14 הסכמים מהותיים
	10.14.1 עסקה משותפת עם פפסיקו – "סברה"
	10.14.2 עסקה משותפת עם פפסיקו – "אובלה"


	11. תחום פעילות שטראוס מים
	11.1 מידע כללי על תחום פעילות מים
	11.1.1 מבנה תחום הפעילות ושינויים החלים בו
	11.1.2 שינויים בהיקף הפעילות בתחום וברווחיותו
	בשנים האחרונות חל גידול מתמיד בהיקף הפעילות בשוק המים בישראל, כאשר בשנת 2023 נשמרה מגמת הצמיחה בקטגוריית ה-POU . להערכת החברה, גידול השימוש בברי מים ובמערכות סינון מי שתיה, נובע מהמודעות הגוברת של הציבור לניהול אורך חיים בריא, וזאת בין היתר, באמצעות ...
	בשבועות הראשונים של מלחמת "חרבות ברזל", חלה ירידה בביקוש בישראל לברי המים של הקבוצה, ובעקבות כך נרשמה השפעה שלילית על המכירות, אשר אינן מהותיות לתוצאות הקבוצה, כאשר נכון למועד פרסום הדוח, ניכרת חזרה מלאה לשיגרה ברמת הביקושים לברי המים. להשפעת מלחמת חר...
	11.1.3 גורמי ההצלחה הקריטיים בתחום הפעילות והשינויים החלים בהם
	11.1.4 מחסומי כניסה ויציאה עיקריים של תחום הפעילות ותחליפים למוצרים
	11.1.5 תחליפים למוצרי תחום הפעילות והשינויים החלים בהם

	11.2 מוצרים ושירותים
	11.3 פילוח הכנסות מוצרים ושירותים
	11.4 לקוחות
	11.5 שיווק והפצה
	11.6 תחרות
	11.7  עונתיות
	11.8 מחקר ופיתוח וקניין רוחני
	11.9 הון אנושי
	11.10 חומרי גלם וספקים
	11.11 הון חוזר
	11.12 מגבלות ופיקוח
	11.13  השקעה מהותית של שטראוס מים בחברה כלולה


	עניינים הנוגעים לפעילות  הקבוצה בכללותה
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	8.
	9.
	10.
	11.
	12. לקוחות
	12.1 התפלגות המכירות ללקוחות (ללא שטראוס מים)
	12.1.2 פילוח המכירות לפי אזורים גיאוגרפיים להלן מחזור המכירות לפי אזורים גיאוגרפיים בשנים 2023, 2022 ו-2021:
	12.1.3 תלות בלקוחות


	13. שיווק והפצה
	13.1 בישראל (ללא שטראוס מים)
	13.2 במדינות מחוץ לישראל

	14. רכוש קבוע, מקרקעין ומתקנים
	15. מחקר ופיתוח
	16. הון אנושי
	16.1 מבנה ארגוני
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	8.
	9.
	10.
	11.
	12.
	13.
	14.
	15.
	16.
	16.1.
	16.2   מצבת העובדים
	16.3 הטבות וטיבם של הסכמי ההעסקה
	16.3.1  ישראל
	16.3.2  מחוץ לישראל

	16.4 תכניות תגמול לעובדים בכלל הקבוצה
	16.5 עובדי קבלן
	16.6 נושאי המשרה ומנהלים
	16.6.1 תוכנית תגמול הוני ארוך טווח
	16.6.2   תמריץ למנהלים ועובדים בכירים
	16.6.3   הטבות וטיבם של הסכמי ההעסקה


	17. מימון
	17.1 כללי
	17.2 אשראי בר דיווח
	17.3. מגבלות בקבלת אשראי
	17.4 אשראי בריבית משתנה
	17.5 דירוג אשראי

	18. מיסוי
	18.1 דיני המס החלים על חברות הקבוצה בישראל ומחוצה לה
	18.2 הליכי שומה לחברות הקבוצה בישראל ומחוצה לה
	18.3 ההטבות העיקריות על פי חוקי עידוד השקעות הון ועל פי חוקים רלבנטיים במדינות בהן פועלת הקבוצה
	18.4 שיעור המס העיקרי מול שיעור המס האפקטיבי של החברה
	18.5 הפסדים לצרכי מס שטרם נוצלו וזיכויי מס שטרם נוצלו

	19. סיכונים סביבתיים ודרכי ניהולם
	19.1 סיכונים סביבתיים כלליים הכרוכים בפעילות הקבוצה, הוראות חוק עיקריות ואירועים סביבתיים מהותיים
	19.1.1 הטיפול בשפכים
	19.1.2 זיהום אוויר
	19.1.3 זיהום קרקע ומקורות מים
	19.1.4 בזבוז משאבי טבע (משאבי אנרגיה ומים)
	19.1.5 טיפול בפסולת

	19.2 מדיניות הקבוצה בניהול הסיכונים הסביבתיים

	20. מגבלות ופיקוח על פעילות הקבוצה
	20.1   חקיקה בענפי המזון והמשקאות וחקיקה צרכנית
	20.2   פיקוח על מחירי מוצרים
	20.3   רישיונות פעילות
	20.4   דיני תחרות
	20.4.1 הכרזות מונופולין
	20.4.2. צווים מוסכמים לפי חוק התחרות הכלכלית
	20.4.3 חקירה רשות התחרות
	20.4.4 הודעה על כוונה להטיל עיצום כספי
	20.4.5 חוק המזון

	20.5   כשרות
	20.6   ספק מוכר למשרד הביטחון
	20.7   תקינה
	20.8   ניהול האיכות

	21. הסכמים מהותיים
	21.1    הוראות בקשר לשימוש בשם ובמותג "שטראוס", אי-תחרות ושיפוי

	22. הליכים משפטיים
	23. ייעוד ואסטרטגיה עסקית
	23.1 ייעוד הקבוצה
	23.2  אסטרטגיה עסקית
	 חיזוק Consumer Centric Approach – פנייה לקהלים וקהילות חדשים, מתן מענה לצרכים המשתנים של האוכלוסייה, במתן פתרונות מותאמים עבור הלקוחות, וחדשנות מבוססת בינה עסקית, מידע ונתונים.

	23.3 יישום אסטרטגיית הקבוצה המעודכנת

	24. מידע כספי לגבי אזורים גיאוגרפיים
	24.1   חשיפה לסיכונים עקב פעילות במגוון אזורים גיאוגרפיים

	25. דיון בגורמי סיכון וניהולם
	25.1   מיפוי גורמי הסיכון ומידת השפעתם על פעילות הקבוצה
	25.2   גורמי סיכון מאקרו כלכליים
	25.3   גורמי סיכון ענפיים
	ג. יציבות וגמישות פיננסית:
	ד. סיכונים תפעוליים: ייצור ושרשרת אספקה
	ה. בטיחות ואיכות המוצרים והשירות – אופי הפעילות בענף המזון והמשקאות חושף את עסקי הקבוצה לפגיעה במקרים של פגם בתהליך הייצור, באיכות חומרי הגלם, באיכות המוצרים עצמם (המיוצרים על ידה או בעבורה) או באיכות השירות המסופק באופן ישיר ללקוחות הקבוצה. פגמים אלה...
	ו. סיכונים משפטיים, רגולציה וציות

	25.4  גורמי סיכון ייחודיים




	דוח דירקטוריון 2023 שער
	דוח דירקטוריון 2023 - מונגש-PDFUA
	דוח דירקטוריון על מצב עניני התאגיד ליום 31 בדצמבר 2023
	תוכן עניינים – דוח הדירקטוריון לבעלי המניות
	הסברי הדירקטוריון על מצב עניני התאגיד
	1. כללי
	2. נתונים עיקריים מתוך תיאור עסקי התאגיד
	2.1. כללי
	2.2. תמצית התפתחויות עיקריות בתקופת הדוח ולאחריה
	2.2.1 אירוע ריקול והשבתת מפעל השוקולד בנוף הגליל

	2.3. דיבידנדים
	ההחלטות בדבר חלוקת דיבידנד מגובשות בדירקטוריון החברה. תדירות והיקף החלוקות נגזרים מתוצאותיה העסקיות של הקבוצה ובהתאם לצרכיה.


	השינויים בסביבה הכלכלית
	3. מלחמת "חרבות ברזל"
	4. שינויים במערכת המשפט בישראל וגל המחאות
	5. לחימה רוסיה אוקראינה

	6. מחירי חומרי גלם ותשומות אחרות בייצור
	7. מחירי האנרגיה
	8. תנודות בשערי מטבע זר
	9. אינפלציה
	10. ריבית
	11. התפתחויות רגולטוריות בישראל
	עולם החלב
	במהלך חודש יולי 2023 נחתם צו זמני לתקופה של 3 חודשים המבטל את המכס על חלב. ביום 19 באוקטובר 2023, שר האוצר פרסם צו המאריך בשלושה חודשים נוספים את הפטור ממכס על החלב. הצו לא חודש ובהתאם לכך, החל מיום 18 בינואר, 2024 בוטל הפטור ושיעור המכס על חלב חזר לר...
	תקנות הגנת הצרכן
	חוק הגנה על בריאות הציבור

	12. רגולציה עסקית ושינויים בענף המזון בישראל
	13. דיווח איכותי בדבר חשיפה לסיכוני שוק ודרכי ניהולם

	תוצאות הפעילות העסקית
	14. תוצאות הפעילות העסקית
	15. תמצית המאזן
	16. התאמות לדוחות הניהוליים
	17. נתונים פיננסים השוואתיים עיקריים על פי הדוחות הניהוליים
	18. מכירות – ניהולי
	19. רווח גולמי – ניהולי
	20. רווח תפעולי - ניהולי
	21. רווח כולל לתקופה (בהתאם לדוח החשבונאי)
	22. ניתוח התוצאות העסקיות של היחידות העסקיות המרכזיות
	22.1. פעילות הקבוצה בישראל
	22.2. מסגרת פעילות קפה
	20
	21
	21.2
	22.2.1 מכירות מסגרת פעילות הקפה לפי איזורים גיאוגרפיים מרכזיים:
	22.2.2 Três Corações (ברזיל) - 3C - חברה בשליטה משותפת (50%) של הקבוצה ושל קבוצת São Miguel (50%) (הנתונים משקפים את חלקה של שטראוס קפה (50%))

	22.3. תחום פעילות מטבלים וממרחים בינלאומי
	20
	21
	21.2
	21.3
	22.3.1 סברה
	22.3.2 אובלה

	22.4. תחום שטראוס מים
	20
	21
	21.4
	22.4.1 תוצאות האייר שטראוס מים (HSW)

	22.5. פעילויות אחרות


	נזילות, מקורות מימון ומצב כספי
	עומס פירעונות
	יחס חוב נטו/EBITDA
	הרכב החוב
	23. נזילות
	21
	22
	23.1  דירוג אשראי
	23.2 היקף האשראי הממוצע
	23.3 דוח מצבת התחייבויות לפי מועדי פירעון
	23.4 הון חוזר תזרימי
	23.5 הסדרי מימון לקוחות וספקים
	הקבוצה מבצעת מפעם לפעם עסקאות פאקטורינג של חובות לקוחות ללא זכות החזרה (non-recourse) ועסקאות רוורס פאקטורינג של יתרות ספקים. לפרטים נוספים ראו באור 8.5 ובאור 16.2 לדוחות הכספיים המאוחדים ליום 31 בדצמבר 2023.
	23.6 מידע נוסף ביחס לנזילות ותזרים תפעולי

	24. גילוי בנושא בחינת סימני אזהרה בגין גרעון בהון החוזר בהתאם  לתקנה 10(ב)(14)(א)
	25. פרטים בדבר הערכות שווי מהותיות
	קיימות, אחריות תאגידית, השקעה חברתית ותרומות
	אסטרטגיית הקיימות 2030
	נקודות מרכזיות לציון בפעילות שנת 2023:
	תזונה ואורח חיים בריא
	ניהול השפעה סביבתית
	ניהול השפעה חברתית

	פעילות בחירום ותמיכה במאמץ המלחמתי בישראל


	היבטי ממשל תאגידי
	26. דירקטוריון החברה וועדותיו
	26.1 דירקטורים בעלי מיומנות חשבונאית ופיננסית

	27. ניהול סיכונים
	28. פרטים בדבר המבקר הפנימי בתאגיד
	29. שכר רואי חשבון מבקרים
	30. אפקטיביות הבקרה הפנימית
	31. אירועים לאחר תאריך הדוח על המצב הכספי



	דוח מאוחד 2023 שער
	דוח כספי מאוחד 31.12.2023 - מונגש-PDFUA
	דוחות כספיים ליום 31 בדצמבר 2023
	תוכן עניינים
	דוח רואי החשבון המבקרים לבעלי המניות של שטראוס גרופ בע"מ
	ענייני מפתח בביקורת
	עמדות מס לא וודאיות
	מדוע העניין נקבע כעניין מפתח בביקורת
	המענה שניתן לעניין המפתח בביקורת
	להלן הנהלים העיקריים שבוצעו:


	ירידת ערך מוניטין או נכסים בלתי מוחשיים בעלי אורך חיים בלתי מוגדר
	מדוע העניין נקבע כעניין מפתח בביקורת
	המענה שניתן לעניין המפתח בביקורת
	להלן הנהלים העיקריים שבוצעו:



	דוחות על המצב הכספי מאוחדים
	דוחות רווח והפסד מאוחדים
	דוחות על הרווח הכולל מאוחדים
	דוחות על השינויים בהון מאוחדים
	דוחות על תזרימי מזומנים מאוחדים
	באורים לדוחות הכספיים המאוחדים
	באור 1- כללי
	1.1 אירועים בתקופת הדוח
	1.1.1 מלחמת חרבות ברזל
	1.1.2 הלחימה ברוסיה אוקראינה


	באור 2 - בסיס עריכת הדוחות הכספיים
	2.1 הצהרה על עמידה בתקני דיווח כספי בינלאומיים
	2.2 בסיס המדידה
	2.3 מטבע הפעילות ומטבע ההצגה
	2.4 השימוש באומדנים ובשיקול דעת
	2.5 תקופת המחזור התפעולי
	2.6 יישום לראשונה של תקנים חדשים, תיקונים לתקנים ופרשנויות
	2.6.1. תיקון לתקן חשבונאות בינלאומי 1 IAS, הצגת דוחות כספיים: גילוי למדיניות החשבונאית:
	2.6.2. תיקון ל- תקן חשבונאות בינלאומי 12 IAS, מיסים על הכנסה: מס נדחה הקשור לנכסים והתחייבויות הנובעים מעסקה אחת:
	2.6.3. מיסים על הכנסה: רפורמת המס הגלובלי – חוקי מודל 2 Pillar:


	באור 3 - עיקרי המדיניות החשבונאית המהותית
	3.1 בסיס האיחוד וצירופי עסקים
	3.2 השקעה בחברות כלולות ובעסקאות משותפות
	3.3 עסקאות במטבע חוץ ופעילות חוץ
	3.4 מכשירים פיננסיים
	3.4.1 נכסים פיננסיים שאינם נגזרים
	3.4.2 מכשירים פיננסיים נגזרים

	3.5 רכוש קבוע
	3.6 נכסים בלתי מוחשיים
	3.6.1 מוניטין
	3.6.2 מחקר ופיתוח
	3.6.3 הפחתה

	3.7 נכסים חכורים
	3.8 מלאי
	3.9 ירידת ערך נכסים שאינם פיננסיים
	3.10 הטבות לעובדים
	תוכניות להפקדה מוגדרת

	3.11 עסקאות תשלום מבוסס מניות
	3.12 הפרשות
	3.12.1 תביעות
	3.12.2 התחייבויות תלויות
	3.12.3 שינוי מבני
	3.12.4 אחריות

	3.13 הכנסות
	הכנסות ממכירת מוצרים
	תמורה משתנה
	תמורה לשלם ללקוח

	הכנסות ממכירת ברי מים, שירותי התקנה ושירותים נלווים

	3.14 סיווג תזרימי מזומנים מריבית ודיבידנדים
	3.15 הוצאות מסים על ההכנסה
	3.16 תקנים חדשים ופרשנויות שטרם אומצו
	3.16.1 תיקונים ל -7 IAS  דוח על תזרימי מזומנים ו-7 IFRS מכשירים פיננסיים גילויים: הסדרי מימון ספקים:
	3.16.2 תיקון ל -1 IAS הצגת דוחות כספיים: סיווג התחייבויות כשוטפות או בלתי שוטפות ותיקון עוקב: התחייבויות לא שוטפות עם אמות מידה פיננסיות:


	באור 4 - מדיניות חשבונאית קריטית ושיקולי דעת ההנהלה
	ירידת ערך נכסים
	התחייבויות תלויות
	עמדות מס לא וודאיות

	באור 5 – קביעת שווי הוגן
	באור 6 - חברות בנות
	6.1  מידע בדבר חברות בנות עיקריות
	6.2  חברות בנות- מידע נוסף

	באור 7 - מזומנים ושווי מזומנים
	באור 8 – לקוחות
	8.1  הרכב
	8.2  להלן ניתוח גיול חובות הלקוחות:
	8.3 התנועה בהפרשה לחובות מסופקים במשך התקופה:
	8.4 החשיפה המירבית לסיכון אשראי בגין לקוחות במועד הדיווח לפי סוג הלקוח:
	8.5 מכירת חובות לקוחות במסגרת הסכמי ניכיון – חברות בנות

	באור 9 - חייבים ויתרות חובה
	באור 10 – מלאי
	באור 11 - השקעות בחברות מוחזקות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני
	11.1 חברות מוחזקות מהותיות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני
	11.2 מידע תמציתי בדבר חברות מוחזקות מהותיות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני
	11.3 מידע תמציתי מצרפי בדבר חברות מוחזקות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני שאינן מהותיות בפני עצמן
	11.4 פרטים בדבר דיבידנדים שהתקבלו מחברות מוחזקות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני
	11.5 צירוף דוחות כספיים
	11.6 פרטים נוספים לגבי חברות מוחזקות המטופלות לפי שיטת השווי המאזני של הקבוצה

	באור 12 - השקעות אחרות ויתרות חובה לזמן ארוך
	12.1 פילוח לפי סיווג ההשקעה:
	12.2 פירוט הלוואות לא שוטפות לאחרים ותנאיהן:
	12.3 להלן מועדי הפירעון של הלוואות לא שוטפות לאחרים:

	באור 13 - רכוש קבוע
	13.1 התנועה ברכוש הקבוע
	13.2 רכישת רכוש קבוע באשראי

	באור 14 - נכסים בלתי מוחשיים
	14.1 התנועה בנכסים הבלתי מוחשיים
	14.2 נכסים בלתי מוחשיים בעלי אורך חיים בלתי מוגדר
	14.3 בדיקות ירידת ערך ליחידות מניבות מזומנים הכוללות מוניטין ונכסים בלתי מוחשיים בעלי אורך חיים בלתי    מוגדר

	באור 15  - נדל"ן להשקעה ונכסים מוחזקים למכירה
	15.1 התנועה בנדל"ן להשקעה
	15.2 זכויות במקרקעין
	15.3 נכסים מוחזקים למכירה
	15.4 שווי הוגן

	באור 16 – ספקים
	16.1  הרכב
	16.2  הסדרי מימון ספקים

	באור 17   - זכאים ויתרות זכות
	באור 18 – הפרשות
	תנועה במהלך התקופה

	באור 19  – הלוואות, אשראי ואגרות חוב
	19.1 אשראי לזמן קצר וחלויות שוטפות של הלוואות, אגרות חוב והתחייבויות אחרות לזמן ארוך:
	19.2 הרכב התחייבויות שאינן שוטפות:
	19.3 פרטים בדבר הלוואות מהותיות:
	19.4   פרטים בדבר סדרות אגרות החוב שהונפקו על ידי החברה ובמחזור:
	19.4   פרטים בדבר סדרות אגרות החוב שהונפקו על ידי החברה ובמחזור (המשך):
	19.5    אמות מידה פיננסיות
	אגרות חוב

	19.6   מסגרות אשראי מובטחות

	באור 20  - הטבות לעובדים
	20.3 הרכב
	20.4 תוכניות להטבה מוגדרת
	20.4.1 התנועה בהתחייבות בגין תוכניות הטבה מוגדרת
	20.4.2 הרכב נכסי תכנית הטבה מוגדרת
	20.4.3 התנועה בנכסי תכנית הטבה מוגדרת
	20.4.4 הנחות אקטואריות וניתוח רגישות
	20.4.5 השפעת התכנית על תזרימי המזומנים העתידיים של הקבוצה

	20.5 תוכניות הפקדה מוגדרת
	20.6 התשואה בפועל

	באור 21 - תשלום מבוסס מניות
	21.1 תיאור התכניות
	21.1.1 תכנית אופציות לעובדים
	21.1.2 מיסוי התכניות

	21.2 הענקות בתקופת הדוח
	21.3 להלן התנועה באופציות:
	21.4 הוצאות שכר בקשר עם תשלומים מבוססי מניות
	21.5 ביום 6 בנובמבר 2022 אישר הדירקטוריון של הקבוצה הענקה של 487,096 אופציות למנכ"ל הקבוצה הנכנס. מחיר המימוש נקבע כממוצע שערי הנעילה של מניית החברה ב- 30 ימי המסחר שקדמו למועד ההענקה, בתוספת פרמיה של 5%. ביום 18 בינואר 2023 אישרה האסיפה הכללית את הענ...

	באור 22 - התחייבויות תלויות, שעבודים, ערבויות והתקשרויות
	22.1 התחייבויות תלויות
	22.2 שעבודים
	22.3 ערבויות
	22.4 התקשרויות מהותיות

	באור 23 - חכירות
	חכירות בהן הקבוצה היא החוכרת
	23.1 פרטים לגבי הסכמי חכירה עיקריים בהם הקבוצה היא החוכרת
	23.2 נכסי זכות שימוש
	23.3 מידע נוסף בגין חכירות
	(א) סכומים שהוכרו ברווח והפסד
	(ב) אופציות לסיום או להארכה של חכירה
	(ג) סכומים שהוכרו בדוח על תזרימי מזומנים


	באור 24 - הון וקרנות
	24.1 הון מניות
	24.1.1 הרכב

	24.2 מניות באוצר
	24.3 דיבידנד ששולם  במהלך שנת 2023 החברה לא הכריזה או חילקה דיבידנד לבעלי מניותיה.
	24.4 קרן תרגום
	24.5 קרן עסקאות עם בעלי זכויות שאינן מקנות שליטה

	באור 25 - דיווח על מגזרי פעילות
	25.1 כללי
	25.2 פירוט לפי מגזרי הפעילות והתאמה בין נתוני המגזרים התפעוליים לדוח המאוחד
	25.3 נתונים נוספים לפי מגזרי פעילות והתאמה לדוח המאוחד
	25.4 מידע לגבי אזורים גיאוגרפיים
	25.5 מידע לגבי מוצרים ושירותים
	25.6     לקוחות עיקריים

	באור 26 - מכשירים פיננסיים
	26.1 סיכוני אשראי
	26.1.1 חשיפה לסיכוני אשראי
	26.1.2 בטוחות ובטחונות אשראי אחרים

	26.2 סיכוני ריבית
	26.3 סיכוני מחירי סחורות
	26.3.1 להלן פירוט המכשירים הפיננסיים הנגזרים (נגזרי בורסה) המהותיים של הקבוצה:
	26.3.2 ניתוח רגישות – עסקאות אקדמה ואופציות

	26.4 סיכוני מטבע חוץ
	26.4.2 ניתוח רגישות ביחס לנכסים (התחייבויות) הפיננסיים
	26.4.3 דוח על המצב הכספי על פי בסיסי הצמדה
	26.4.4 ניתוח רגישות ביחס לנכסים (התחייבויות) פיננסיות

	26.5 סיכוני מדד
	26.6 סיכון נזילות
	26.7 שווי הוגן של מכשירים פיננסיים
	26.7.1 שווי הוגן
	26.7.2 היררכיית שווי הוגן
	26.7.2.1 נגזרים - טכניקת הערכת שווי הוגן
	26.7.2.2 היררכיית שווי הוגן של מכשירים פיננסיים הנמדדים בשווי הוגן:



	באור 27 – מכירות
	באור 28 - עלות המכירות
	28.1 לפי מרכיבים
	28.2 לפי מקורות הכנסה

	באור 29 - הוצאות מכירה ושיווק
	באור 30 - הוצאות הנהלה וכלליות
	באור 31 - הכנסות (הוצאות) אחרות, נטו
	באור 32 - הוצאות מימון, נטו
	באור 33 - מסים על ההכנסה
	33.1  פרטים בדבר סביבת המס בה פועלות חברות הקבוצה בישראל
	33.1.1  שיעור מס חברות
	33.1.2 הטבות מתוקף חוק עידוד התעשייה (מסים), תשכ"ט - 1969

	33.2 פרטים בדבר סביבת המס בה פועלות חברות הקבוצה מחוץ לישראל
	33.3 שומות מס סופיות
	33.4 הפסדים מועברים לצורכי מס
	33.5 מחירי העברה
	33.6 הליכי שומה
	33.7 הוראות בינלאומיות
	33.8 הרכב הוצאות מסים על ההכנסה
	33.9 התאמה בין המס התיאורטי על הרווח לפני מס לבין הוצאות המס שנכללו בספרים
	33.10 הרכב המסים הנדחים הכלולים בנכסים (בהתחייבות)

	באור 34 - רווח בסיסי ומדולל למניה
	באור 35 - יתרות ועסקאות עם בעלי עניין וצדדים קשורים
	35.1 זהות בעלי עניין וצדדים קשורים
	35.2 עסקאות עם חברי הנהלה בכירה
	35.2.1 בנוסף לשכר ומשכורות, חברי ההנהלה הבכירה משתתפים בתכנית האופציות של החברה. לפרטים לגבי הקצאת אופציות למנהלים בשנת 2023, ראו באור 21 לעיל. הטבות לחברי הנהלה בכירה הן כדלקמן:
	35.2.2 הטבות לחברי הדירקטוריון הן כדלקמן:

	35.3 יתרות ועסקאות עם בעלי עניין וצדדים קשורים

	באור 36 - אירועים לאחר תאריך הדוח על המצב הכספי



	דוח כספי סולו 31.12 שער
	דוח כספי סולו 31.12.2023 - מונגש-PDFUA
	מידע כספי נפרד ליום 31 בדצמבר 2023
	תוכן העניינים
	נתונים על המצב הכספי של החברה
	נתוני רווח והפסד של החברה
	נתונים על הרווח הכולל של החברה
	נתונים על תזרימי המזומנים של החברה
	מידע נוסף
	באור 1 – כללי דיווח ומדיניות
	1.1 כללי
	1.1.1 השפעת מלחמת חרבות ברזל על פעילות החברה

	1.2 מדיניות חשבונאית
	1.2.1 נכסים והתחייבויות הכלולים בדוחות המאוחדים המיוחסים לחברה עצמה כחברה אם
	1.2.2 הכנסות והוצאות הכלולות בדוחות המאוחדים המיוחסות לחברה עצמה כחברה אם
	1.2.3   תזרימי מזומנים הכלולים בדוחות המאוחדים המיוחסים לחברה עצמה כחברה אם


	באור 2 – מזומנים ושווי מזומנים
	באור 3 – השקעות אחרות ויתרות חובה לזמן ארוך
	3.1  הרכב השקעות אחרות ויתרות חובה לזמן ארוך

	באור 4 – הלוואות והתחייבויות אחרות
	4.1 פרטים בדבר הלוואות מהותיות
	4.2 נכון ליום 31 בדצמבר 2023, לחברה מסגרות אשראי מובטחות ולא מנוצלות בסך 600 מיליוני ש"ח.
	נכון ליום 31 בדצמבר 2022,  לחברה מסגרות אשראי מובטחות מנוצלות בסכום של 189 מיליוני ש"ח.
	לפרטים נוספים ראו באור 19.6 ו-26.6 בדוחות הכספיים המאוחדים של הקבוצה.

	באור 5 – מכשירים פיננסיים
	5.1  סיכוני מדד ומטבע חוץ
	5.1.1  מאזן הצמדה
	5.1.2 ניתוח רגישות ביחס לנכסים (התחייבויות) הפיננסיים
	5.1.3   סיכוני מדד

	5.2  סיכוני ריבית משתנה וניתוח רגישות תזרים המזומנים לגבי מכשירים בשיעורי ריבית משתנים
	5.3 סיכון נזילות
	5.4   שווי הוגן של מכשירים פיננסיים

	באור 6 – פרטים בדבר מסים על הכנסה
	6.1  כללי
	6.2  שומות מס
	לחברה הוצאו שומות מס סופיות עד וכולל שנת 2017. נכון למועד אישור הדוחות הכספיים, מתנהלים דיוני שומות על שנים 2018-2021. לדעת ההנהלה, בשלב מקדמי זה ולאור המידע שבידיה, לחברה קיימת הפרשה נאותה בספרים.
	6.3  הרכב הוצאות מסים על ההכנסה
	6.4  הרכב המסים הנדחים הכלולים בנכסים (בהתחייבויות)

	באור 7 – פרטים בדבר קשרים, התקשרויות ועסקאות מהותיות עם חברות מוחזקות
	7.1     דיבידנדים מחברות מוחזקות

	באור 8 – תביעות והתחייבויות תלויות
	באור 9 – שעבודים וערבויות
	9.1 שעבודים
	9.2 ערבויות

	באור 10 – אירועים לאחר תאריך הדיווח



	פרטים נוספים על התאגיד24.3.24 - מונגש-PDFUA
	פרטים נוספים על התאגיד
	תקנה 10א': תמצית דוחות על הרווח הכולל הרבעוניים לפי הדוחות הכספיים של החברה
	תקנה 10ג': שימוש בתמורת ניירות ערך
	תקנה 11: רשימת השקעות בחברות בת ובחברות כלולות
	תקנה 12: שינויים בהשקעות בחברות-בת ובחברות כלולות (*)
	תקנה 13: הכנסות של חברות בת וחברות כלולות והכנסות מהן לתאריך המאזן (מיליוני ש"ח)
	תקנה 20: מסחר בבורסה
	תקנה 21:  תגמולים לבעלי עניין ולנושאי משרה בכירה
	הערות לטבלה:
	נתונים נוספים:

	תקנה 21א': השליטה בתאגיד
	תקנה 22: עסקאות עם בעל שליטה
	עסקאות המנויות בסעיף 270 (4) לחוק החברות
	4)  זכויות חכירה במקרקעין בפארק תעשייה בר לב – לפרטים בקשר עם התקשרותה של שטראוס בריאות בע"מ, חברה בשליטת החברה, בעסקה עם שטראוס אחזקות בע"מ לרכישת זכויות החכירה של שטראוס אחזקות במקרקעין בפארק תעשייה בר לב ראו דיווחי החברה מיום 24 באוגוסט 2022 (מס' א...
	עסקאות שאינן מנויות בסעיף 270 (4) לחוק החברות
	תקנה 24: החזקות בעלי עניין ונושאי משרה בכירה
	תקנה 24א': הון רשום, הון מונפק וניירות ערך המירים
	תקנה 25א': מען רשום
	תקנה 26: הדירקטורים של התאגיד
	תקנה 26א': נושאי משרה בכירה
	תקנה 26ב': מורשה חתימה של התאגיד - בחברה אין מורשי חתימה עצמאיים.
	תקנה 27: רואה-החשבון המבקר של התאגיד - סומך חייקין, רח' הארבעה 17, מגדל המילניום, תל-אביב 64739.
	תקנה 28: שינוי בתזכיר או בתקנון שנעשה בשנת הדיווח - לא היו שינויים בתזכיר או בתקנון החברה.
	תקנה 29:
	א. המלצות והחלטות הדירקטורים
	ב.  החלטות אסיפה כללית מיוחדת

	תקנה 29א': החלטות החברה
	עסקאות חריגות הטעונות אישורים מיוחדים לפי סעיף 270 (1) לחוק החברות:
	פטור, ביטוח או התחייבות לשיפוי לנושא משרה אשר בתוקף במועד הדוח:



	שאלון ממשל תאגידי 2023 שער
	שאלון ממשל תאגידי 25.3.24 - מונגש-PDFUA
	שאלון ממשל תאגידי
	עצמאות הדירקטוריון
	כשירות וכישורי הדירקטורים
	ישיבות הדירקטוריון (וכינוס אסיפה כללית)
	הפרדה בין תפקידי המנהל הכללי ויושב ראש הדירקטוריון
	ועדת הביקורת
	תפקידי הועדה לבחינת הדוחות הכספיים (להלן - הועדה) בעבודתה המקדימה לאישור הדוחות הכספיים
	ועדת תגמול
	מבקר פנים
	עסקאות עם בעלי עניין


	שערים
	דוח שנתי בדבר אפקטיביות הבקרה הפנימית על הדיווח הכספי ועל הגילוי

	אפקטיביות הבקרה 31.12.2023 מונגש-PDFUA
	דוח שנתי בדבר אפקטיביות הבקרה הפנימית על הדיווח הכספי ועל הגילוי לפי תקנה 38 ג(א):
	הצהרות מנהלים : (א) הצהרת מנהל כללי לפי תקנה 38 ג(ד)(1)
	הצהרת מנהלים
	הצהרת מנהל כללי


	(ב) הצהרת נושא המשרה הבכיר ביותר בתחום הכספים לפי תקנה 38 ג(ד)(2)
	הצהרת מנהלים
	הצהרת נושא המשרה הבכיר ביותר בתחום הכספים




	שערים
	צירוף דוחות חברה כלולה עפ"י תקנה 44 לתקנות ניירות ערך התש"ל – 1970

	1299386 - 01 - 3COR_FS IFRS 2023_REV001_Rev_Staff_MS_PBS_FUP_CH_Anya_CLEAN_REV01_CLEAN 1 1_CLIENTE - ACC
	Três Corações Alimentos S.A. Consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 
	Contents 
	Independent auditor’s report  
	Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022
	Consolidated Statements of Income
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow Years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 (In thousand of Brazilian Reais)
	1 General information 
	2 Basis of preparation 
	3 Changes in significant accounting policies 
	4 Material accounting policies 
	5 Standards issued but not yet effective 
	6 Cash and cash equivalents 
	7 Deposits 
	8 Trade receivables 
	9 Inventories 
	10 Recoverable taxes 
	11 Other current and non-current assets 
	12 Related parties  
	13 Investments 
	14 Fixed assets 
	15 Intangible assets 
	16 Leases 
	17 Short and long term loans 
	18 Trade payables 
	19 Employees and other payroll related liabilities 
	20 Interest on equity payable – short and long term 
	21 Payable taxes 
	22 Other current and non-current liabilities 
	23 Provision for legal proceedings 
	24 Income taxes and social contribution 
	25 Equity 
	26 Revenue 
	27 Cost of sales by nature 
	28 Selling and marketing expenses by nature 
	29 General and administrative expenses by nature 
	30 Finance expenses, net 
	31 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management 



	דוח אפקטיביות הבקרה31.12.24 מתוכן v2-PDFUA
	דוח שנתי בדבר אפקטיביות הבקרה הפנימית על הדיווח הכספי ועל הגילוי לפי תקנה 9ב(א):
	הצהרות מנהלים : (א) הצהרת מנהל כללי לפי תקנה 9ב(ד)(1)
	הצהרת מנהלים
	הצהרת מנהל כללי


	(ב) הצהרת נושא המשרה הבכיר ביותר בתחום הכספים לפי תקנה 9ב(ד)(2)
	הצהרת מנהלים
	הצהרת נושא המשרה הבכיר ביותר בתחום הכספים




	שטראוס- IFRS בקרה פנימית - ביקורת 2023-PDFUA
	דוח רואי החשבון המבקרים לבעלי המניות של שטראוס גרופ בע"מ
	בדבר ביקורת של רכיבי בקרה פנימית על דיווח כספי
	בהתאם לסעיף 9ב (ג) בתקנות ניירות ערך (דוחות תקופתיים ומיידיים), התש"ל-1970


		2024-03-27T15:18:50+0000
	Not specified




